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Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong

Registered Office

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited
Units 1607-8, 16th Floor, Citicorp Centre,
18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Internet Websites

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group
http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com Club
http://www.haomama.com

Detergent Business
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Business
http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Business
http://www.hkflourmills.com
http://www.gsflour.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Revenue (HK$ million) Profit Attributable to
WA CEEGET) Shareholders (HK$ million)
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Consolidated Results
mEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Year ended 30 June

BEAA=THLEE

(HK$ million) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(BEEET) —EtE —E-XE —E-F&F —E-WE —T-=
Revenue A 4,814 4,708 4,449 4,117 3,618
GP% ER=E 21% 20% 17% 17% 16%
Profit before taxation BR% BT A 319 266 165 176 166
Taxation HiE (46) (64) (51) (35) (35)
Profit for the year REERF 273 202 114 141 131
Non-controlling interests FEid R = - - _ _
Profit attributable to DB R RE

shareholders of b=l

the Company 273 202 114 141 131

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities
mEEERAE
At 30 June
RAA=+H

(HK$ million) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(B EHET) —E—tFE ZE-RF ZE2-FF ZE2-NFE —ZB-=F
Total assets HEE 2,561 2,317 2,558 2,472 2,258
Total liabilities wmesd (655) (586) (867) (849) (712)
Non-controlling interests  FE#: &gz (11) (1) (11) (11) (11)
Equity attributable to RATFRER

shareholders of LR

the Company 1,895 1,720 1,680 1,612 1,535

MIE(ER)BRAR | —E—tFFRH



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Key Financial Indicators

FEMBER

Year ended 30 June
BEANA=1RHLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

T tE —B-XF —F-HF -—FT-NF —F-=%

Earnings per share (HK$) BRBRA(EET)

Basic 2R 1.15 0.85 0.48 0.59 0.55
Diluted s 1.12 0.84 0.47 0.58 0.55
Dividend per share (HK$) SRR E (BET) 0.35 0.28 0.21 0.21 0.18
Equity-debt ratio* FERER = 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
B Equity-debt ratio is defined as the ratio of the total equity 3 REERLERARATRERERAEZEE
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company to net debt. BEXENLEE - FEXERELAERENERE
Net debt comprises total bank loans and obligations under finance AEIEFRERRESEE -

leases less cash and cash equivalents.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (“The Board”) of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited (“The Company”), | am pleased to present
herein the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group” or “Lam Soon”) for the financial year
ended 30 June 2017.

The Group achieved revenue and profit growths of 2% and 35%
(7% and 42% if excluding foreign exchange impact) respectively
compared to the preceding year. The continued shift in sales
mix towards our higher margined core products/brands in the
Food segment, coupled with favourable wheat costs and bran
prices and production efficiencies, enabled the Group to achieve
higher profitability despite weakened consumer confidence and
an unstable macro environment throughout the year. While our
Detergent business faced reduced profitability this year in the face
of stiff price competition, surging trade spending, material, labour,
and logistics cost escalations, we are confident that the remedial
plans now in place, will restore its profit trend in the coming year.

In the year under review, all of our businesses further deepened
and widened its penetration into key markets nationwide
through new product introductions, strong branding and diligent
channel network expansion and management. On the production
floor, process improvements and cost disciplines helped lower
conversion costs.

With sound fundamentals and strong brands, our Group is
well positioned to provide sustainable growth in our Food and
Detergent segments.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESEIRBESE

Appreciation

On behalf of The Board, | would like to thank our customers,
business partners, bankers and stakeholders for their consistent
support, and express appreciation for our management and staff
who work hard to ensure our strategic plans are on track. We
are encouraged by our Group’s progress and will remain fully
committed to providing high quality and safe products to our
consumers and customers, and delivering long-term sustainable
profitable growth to our shareholders.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 August 2017
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Overview

With strengthened brand positions and wider product portfolios in
the Food and Detergent segments, the Group continued to expand
its coverage in mainland China and Hong Kong across all channels
of e-Commerce, supermarkets/hypermarkets, industrial accounts
and distributors. With our focus to provide solutions and products
that meet the needs and wants of our customers, our product
portfolios are increasingly differentiated and our core brands
continued to gain traction across key markets. We believe the
Group is poised to unlock further growth and profit opportunities.

The Group continues to invest and upgrade our production
infrastructure and capability. In the later part of the new financial
year, work will commence on the construction of a new factory
at Yixing, Jiangsu to replace the existing aging factory in the
same area. Upon completion, this new factory will be capable of
producing new and higher quality products to meet the growing
demand of an increasing affluent consumer base. Meanwhile,
our other production facilities continued to be improved during
the year. For the Group to deliver long-term sustainability and
competitiveness, we will ensure that our facilities always keep pace
with growth and customer demands while satisfying regulatory
and environmental requirements.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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Financial Results

The Group's revenue in the year grew 2% to HK$4,814 million,
impacted by the depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”), in which the
bulk of our revenues are denominated. Gross profit increased from
20% to 21% of revenue or HK$926 million of the past year to
HK$1,023 million. Group’s profit after-tax was up 35% at HK$273
million against HK$202 million recorded in the previous year. The
better profit can be traced to the improvement of our core brands’
performances, the favourable wheat costs, and the stability of
higher bran prices. Operating expenses increased 7.2% to HK$731
million from last year as we further invested in key markets and
channels to fuel higher growth.

With the benefit of ongoing improvements in the Group’s
performance and continued strict financial discipline in inventory
management and capital expenditure, the Group’s cash position
increased 24% to HK$823 million at 30 June 2017 from last year's
HK$664 million.

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of HK$0.23 per
share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.12 per share paid earlier this year
(2016: interim dividend of HK$0.10 and final dividend of HK$0.18
per share), total dividend amounts to HK$0.35 per share for the
year.

Business Review

In spite of the challenging market conditions, the Group sustained
revenue and volume growth in both our Food and Detergent
Segments. Our core brands, Flour’'s Golden Statue and American
Roses, Edible Qil’s Knife, and Detergent’s AXE continued to record
healthy volume growth.

The Group remained focused this year on expediting the PRC
nationwide thrust and coverage of our brands via channel
development including e-Commerce and traditional distribution
channel expansion for Oil and Detergent businesses in our
stronghold of Guangdong Province. Our Flour business further
developed its existing business-to-consumer (B2C) model using
various distribution channels to supplement our traditional strong
business-to-business (B2B) model paving the way for future sales
and profitable growth.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
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Business Review (continved)
Food Segment

Although favourable wheat costs and bran prices were partially
offset by increased peanut oil prices, manpower and logistics
cost increases, this segment enjoyed a net positive gain. The
Food segment continued its strong momentum from last year
and continued to deliver revenue, volume, and profit growth. It is
noteworthy that year-on-year operating profit growth rate of 40%
significantly outpaced the 2% revenue and 3% volume increases
because of significant product mix shift to our core brands.

In Hong Kong, Knife Peanut Oil maintained its leadership position
for the year with a 45.5% market value share, Knife Peanut Oil
sales value posted a 1% growth, outpacing the category’s growth
of 0.6%. Knife overall value market share across all oil types,
however, dropped slightly from last year’s 27.5% to this year’s
27.1%." This was the result as management balanced its priority of
delivering long-term sustainable profit and gaining market position
without compromising Knife's pricing integrity.

In Guangdong Province, Knife overall annual value market
share of 6.7% or a 14.9% growth versus last year continued to
outpace the oil category growth of 7.1%.2 This growth reflected
a good performance for Knife in the key cities of Shenzhen and
Guangzhou where the category growth was relatively flat. Moving
forward, we will continue to strengthen our support to grow these
two strategically important markets.

Riding on the back of the success of our Supreme Peanut Qil
Product since its October 2014 launch, we continued to leverage
on consumer insights to develop new products to meet the
consumers’ increasing demand for high quality, safe, and healthy
products.

' Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Edible Oil category from July
2015 to June 2017 for Total Supermarkets & Convenience Stores in
Hong Kong. (Copyright © 2017, The Nielsen Company.)

2 Lam Soon's calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Edible Qil (Consumer Pack)
Category for the rolling year June 2016 (from July 2015 to June 2016)
and the rolling year June 2017 (from July 2016 to June 2017), for
the China Guangdong market total. (Copyright © 2017, The Nielsen
Company.)
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Business Review (continved)
Food Segment (continued)

Planning for a new oil bottling line in our Hong Kong Tai Po site
was undertaken in the year under review and is expected to be
commissioned towards the end of the new financial year. Once
completed, it will enhance our efficiency and cost effectiveness
in serving the Hong Kong and Macau retail markets. Along with
the existing bulk oil line, we are well positioned to strengthen our
overall oil business in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s flour business continued its strong volume growth,
especially in our core brands, Golden Statue and American Roses.
Other than benefiting from the favourable wheat costs and
bran prices, our persistent and targeted approach over the past
few years in driving our core brand growth beyond the first and
second-tier cities has yielded results as we recorded in the year
meaningful growth in the third and fourth-tier cities.

Our focus on product and customer rationalisation has helped
us to transform our product mix towards the premium and
more profitable products. Utilisation at our production facilities
continued to increase, driving cost down to mitigate our risk of
operating in a heavily commoditised industry.

To complement the strength of our traditional B2B model, our
efforts in building a long-term B2C business gradually gained
traction, especially in the e-Commerce space. We will further build
our presence and performance in this area through acquisition
of more expertise and brand-building investments in the various
social media platforms in mainland China. While growing this
business requires time, investment and patience, the Group is
committed to this strategic initiative to deliver long-term success.
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Business Review (continued)
Detergent Segment

In the Detergent segment, although our inability to fully pass
on the material cost increases in this increasingly competitive
environment led to lower margins and profitability, our flagship
brand AXE continued to gain in distribution and volume. The
severe price competition in this segment further exacerbated the
problem when trade spending significantly outpaced revenue
growth. Through improved efficiency and allocation of resources,
we are optimistic that the counter-measures taken will help this
segment to rebound.

In Hong Kong, the Group maintained its leadership position
with 36.9% annual market value share in the sluggish dish wash
detergent category. While market value shares of both AXE
(25.5% versus last year's 25.7%) and Labour (11.4% versus last
year’s 11.5%) suffered slight drops for the year, the April — June
2017 quarterly market share data showed a strong rebound for
AXE with a value market share of 27.0% as opposed to 25.1% the
same period last year.? In the coming year, the Detergent segment
will focus on driving our core brands with more efficacious trade
spending.

In Guangdong Province, the annual market value shares of AXE
and Labour (17.4% and 5.7%, respectively) by and large, remained
unchanged versus a year ago (17.3% and 5.9%). The overall dish
wash detergent category in Guangdong Province registered an
annual value growth rate of only 2.9%.# Severe price competition
was observed during the year in this category in Guangdong
Province. While this trend showed no signs of abating, we will
nevertheless adopt cost effective approaches in our marketing and
selling initiatives in order to improve this segment’s profitability.

3 Includes market shares of AXE and Labour; Lam Soon’s calculation
based in part on data reported by Nielsen through its Retail Index
Service for the Dishwashing Detergent category from July 2015 to June
2017 for Total Supermarkets, Convenience Stores and Drug Stores in
Hong Kong. (Copyright © 2017, The Nielsen Company.)

4 Lam Soon’s calculation based in part on data reported by Nielsen
through its Retail Index Service for the Dish Washing Liquid Category
for the rolling year June 2016 (from July 2015 to June 2016) and the
rolling year June 2017 (from July 2016 to June 2017), for the China
Guangdong modern trade channel market. (Copyright © 2017, The
Nielsen Company.)
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Business Review (continued)
Detergent Segment (continued)

In the new financial year, the Detergent segment will place more
emphasis in increasing both AXE and Labour’s distribution in
Guangdong Province and expedite growth of its fast-growing AXE
e-Commerce business to lift the brand into the national scene.
Efforts to further strengthen Labour in its traditionally strong
general trade market (e.g. smaller cities where modern trade is not
dominated by large supermarket or hypermarket chains) will also
intensify.

Outlook

Our Group will continue the emphasis on our core premium
brands in our new channel and product development initiatives to
widen and deepen their coverage. We will allocate our resources
accordingly to support and stay on course with such a strategy.

Volatile material costs in the segments will always present risk to
our businesses. However, we are working on diminishing this risk
as we strengthen our brands through quality upgrades and core
product offerings. With better profit margins in our core products,
we hope to mitigate although not eliminate, the raw material
price risk from our business. Our ongoing initiatives on cost
rationalisation, organisational rightsizing, improved productivity,
inventory/spend management, operational efficiency, and product
improvements/innovations will keep us competitive, generate
sustainable profitable growth, and create capital value to our
shareholders.

On the people front, we will continue to strengthen our talent pool
through training and recruitment to improve our bench strength
and hence ability to execute our strategic initiatives especially
in the areas of e-Commerce, supply chain, and research and
development.

The Chinese consumers’ increasing spending power and
propensity to purchase high quality, safe, and healthy products is
expected to continue even though the projected 2017 GDP growth
rate hovers below 7%. We are confident that our high quality
product/service standards that meet the needs of the consumer
and garner the support of our trade partners will be a strong
differentiating factor that will distinguish the Group. We believe
the Group is well-positioned to benefit from the growing affluence
of our consumers.
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Financial Review

Management has been provided with the following key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) to manage its business, through
evaluating, controlling and setting strategies to improve
performance. Such KPIs include revenue, gross profit margin, net
profit attributable to shareholders, inventory and trade receivable
turnover days.

Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group’s revenue increased
by HK$106 million or 2% to HK$4,814 million. Gross margin
improved by 1.6 percentage points to 21.3%, driven by
improvement of core brands’ performance, favourable wheat
costs, and the stability of higher bran prices. Operating expenses
also increased 7.2% to HK$731 million from last year as we further
invested in key markets and channels to fuel higher growth.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2017, the Group had a cash balance of HK$823 million
(2016: HK$664 million). This was mainly attributable to the net
cash generated from operating activities. About 67% of these
funds were denominated in RMB, 13% in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and 20% in United States dollars.

Committed banking facilities available to Group companies and
not yet drawn as at 30 June 2017 amounted to HK$722 million
(2016: HK$824 million).
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
£ 3C1)-

Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are internal controls over the application of
financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed to
manage and mitigate the commodities price risk and currency risk
for trade purposes.

At 30 June 2017, the inventory turnover days' were 65 days (2016:
55 days). The trade receivable turnover days? remained at a stable
level of 24 days (2016: 23 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in RMB,
HK$, and Macau Pataca.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The Group monitors its exposure by
considering factors including, but not limited to, exchange rate
movement of the relevant foreign exchange currencies as well
as the Group's cash flow requirements to ensure that its foreign
exchange exposure is kept at an acceptable level. Details of the
foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out in note 26(d) to
the financial statements.

Net exchange losses for the year are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

' The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the closing
balances divided by the preceding 3 months’ cost of sales and
multiplied by 91 days

2 The calculation of trade receivables turnover days is based on the

closing balances divided by the preceding 3 month’s revenue and
multiplied by 91 days

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Financial Review (continued)
Capital Expenditure

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group invested a total
sum of HK$36 million (2016: HK$34 million) on acquisition of
plant equipment and construction of new production lines.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in note
27(a) to the financial statements.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2017, there were 1,639 employees in the Group.
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus mechanism
were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy to retain,
reward and motivate individuals for their contributions to the
Group. Share options are granted to the Group Managing Director
and other eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming years.

Relation with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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Honour & Award
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HKMA/TVB AWARDS FOR MARKETING EXCELLENCE @

Citation for Excellence in Mainlond Morkefing

“Knife - The Taste & Heolth of HK™
Lam Soan Hong Keng Gror

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group was awarded “HKMA/TVB Awards for Marketing Excellence 2016”,
Citation for Excellence in Mainland Marketing “Knife — The Taste & Health of HK"” organised by
the Hong Kong Management Association with sponsored by Television Broadcasts Limited

HEBEEEXHE N EREBREMRATER 2 [HKMA/TVB ™5 REIER 2016] ; MIEEBEE
BT mKRERNEE JRE [FHP B RS RE R |
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Honour & Award
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Top Ten Favourite Brands

T2

CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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Century Food Brand 2017 organised by
The Hong Kong Food Council
Century Food Brand — American Roses
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
SELE

Honour & Award
LA B 48 15

Lam Soon Products Supply (Hong Kong)
Company Limited
MIEERHE(EER)BRAE

was certified by Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency with: —

HKQAA - HACCP (Hazard analysis and Critical
Control Points)

ISO 9001: 2008

ISO 22000: 2005

EEERERERATFUTHE
HKQAA - HACCP(BEE 2 #rFf
ISO 9001: 2008

ISO 22000: 2005

A%.

2R 1 I 2

I

[y

LAM SOON PRODUCTS SUPPLY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED

LAM SOON PRODUCTS SUPPLY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
FELE

Honour & Award

RERRIE

Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited

IEEIREN AR D F

was awarded “Top 50 Chinese Wheat Flour Enterprises 2015”
by China National Association of Grain Sector
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Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited
IEMEIERBERAF

was awarded “National Food Industry Enterprises with
Excellent Quality Competence 2016" by
China National Food Industry Association
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS
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Honour & Award
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Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited

SO EIEER AR L E

was awarded “National Excellent Enterprise with
Foreign Investment Excellent Tax Payment and
Turnover (2015-2016)" by China Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

EFBEIERECEBERRINNERECEHSEE 2
BESHIERELE -BELE(2015-2016FEF) |

was awarded “AEO Certificate” by Shenzhen Customs
District People’s Republic of China

ErhEARAMEIRYSEME [RALEXERE]

was awarded “Shenzhen Top Brand — Golden Statue”
by Shenzhen Top Brand Evaluation Committee
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
report for Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Group and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), highlighting its
Environmental, Social, and Governance performance, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as
described in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of its business
operations in food and detergent in Hong Kong and Mainland
China (accounts for 98% of the Group’s total revenue) from 1
July 2016 to 30 June 2017, unless otherwise stated. The business
operation in Macau was excluded due to its relatively small scale.

Stakeholder Engagement and
Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors,
shareholders and employees have been involved in regular
meetings and engagement sessions to discuss and to review areas
of attention which will help the business meet its potential growth
and be prepared for future challenges.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please
give your suggestions or share your views with us via email at
webmaster@lamsoon.com.

Lam Soon’s Sustainability Mission
and Vision

The Lam Soon Group is built on the strong heritage of value
creation for our stakeholders and communities within which we
operate. Over the years, we have taken a progressive approach
in integrating sustainability into our businesses, towards a
stronger, more resilient group. We are committed to: growing our
businesses responsibly, balancing environmental with economic
considerations, as well as creating a positive impact for our
stakeholders and contributing to our communities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERRES

Lam Soon’s Sustainability Mission
and Vision (continued)

Our core values continue to serve as our compass in all that we do:

P EAY AT A B R fE A ER B

=2
5= (4E)

AR OEESEEESI RAS TENERE

Honour To conduct business with honour BE LEEE 2 HNETER
Human resources To enhance the quality of human resources — ADER RBAANEREE —EAEHE
as the essence of management excellence i 1

Entrepreneurship To pursue management vision and foster
entrepreneurship

hEBE EREERIESRBELEREW

Innovation To nurture and be committed to innovation £l RERBDEIH

Quality To consistently provide goods and services of =g BEUERSE INEREREE
the highest quality at competitive prices BEWEmEER%

Progress To continuously improve existing operations EL HENEZERELEEURBERR
and to position for expansion and new ADIE B BT 1R
opportunities

Unity To ensure oneness in purpose, harmony and B3 FAERKIIWER  BERE® -
friendship in the pursuit of prosperity for all MBR K ITFEAR RS TR A

Social To create wealth for the betterment of HEEFE Bl EURETS

responsibility society

To consistently
provide goods and
services of the highest To create wealth for the

To enhance the quality of
human resources

quality betterment
at competitive prices of society

FEARBSE S Bl E L

O ERIR MBS

as the essence of
management excellence

A ADBRz=%
AEMEE Y EE

REHED
& o M AR TS
To improve existing

operations and to
position for expansion

and new opportunities OUR VALUES

BN RER

in pursuit of
progress

piaskEE s - wERs
BB AR AR R 0
BT

To ensure
oneness
in purpose, harmony

To nurture and
be committed to

innovation
Bt & 20 B

To pursue management

and friendship in the To conduct business with vision and foster

pursuit of prosperity honour
for all

entrepreneurship
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREARARES

A. Environmental A. RiE

Emissions

The Group pledges to make continuous
improvement on managing and monitoring waste
gas, wastewater, solid waste and noise. Every
year, through engaging external licensed testing
laboratories, we conduct environmental testing
services for these parameters to evaluate the
capability of existing facilities on meeting regulatory
and environmental requirements and national
standards. Starting from 2013, the Group also retain
qualified institutions to carry out verification on
greenhouse gas emission, as part of the commitment
to the government’s Emission Trading Scheme.

Moreover, across the Group’s major operation
sites we have adopted ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System. The system enables our
effective and timely emergency mechanism in case
of severe environmental pollution accidents, as well
as keeping track of the Group’s energy efficiency
and emission reduction targets.

(i) Environmental Standards

The Group commits to strictly comply with
following key standards and the relevant
laws and regulations relating to the air,
wastewater and noise:

i) The Group commits to strictly comply
with the Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants for Boilers (DB44/765-2010
and GB 13271-2014) and Integrated
Emission Standard for Air Pollutants
(GB 16297-1996);

B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERABRES

A. Environmental continueq)

1. Emissions (continued)

(i)

Environmental Standards (continued)

ii) The Group ensures the discharge
meets the Discharge Limits of Water
Pollutants (DB44/26-2011) issued
by Department of Environmental
Protection of Guangdong Province and
the national Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard (GB 8978-1996).
All discharges from production and
domestic activities are pre-treated
on-site through regularly maintained
grease trap and septic tanks prior to
entering sewage collection system to
nearby wastewater treatment facility;

and

iii) Noise generated from production
strictly complies with Emission
Standard for Industrial Enterprises
Noise at Boundary (GB 12348-
2008). Regular maintenance of
machines and equipment is enforced
to prevent noise generated under
abnormal running conditions. Noise
reduction devices have been installed
for machines such as exhaust fans,
air compressors and grinders in
accordance to the requirements as
specified in the Environmental Impact

Assessment Report.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREARARES

A. Environmental continueq)

1. Emissions (continued)

(i)

Waste Management

Both non-hazardous waste and hazardous
waste were generated from various processes
during production. To prevent potential harm
to human health through contamination
of soil, air and water resources, the Group
commits to ensure proper and immediate
treatment of hazardous waste and waste
that requires strict control by engaging
capable and qualified companies for
collection and further handling. Centralized
waste collection, storage, transfer facilities
are available for on-site solid waste in
accordance to national standards, and to
maximize recycling rate. Licensed companies
are engaged to collect waste (such as PET
bottles, soap and used bleach earth from the
oil plants) for recycling purposes and proper
disposal to landfills.

2. Use of Resources

(i)

Energy Consumption

The Group promotes energy-saving
initiatives. The Group’s flour production
plants have been replacing old T8/T5
fluorescent lamps to energy saving LED
lamps. There were 500 LED lamps installed
up till end of reporting period. The Group
has made investment in replacing old motors
with higher energy efficient ones, reducing
power consumption, as well as investing in
technology upgrade on heat exchanger and
backwashing oil channels with preheated
water. These initiatives helped minimizing
grease solidification, lowering blockage
frequency and maximizing heat exchange
rate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERERABRES

A. Environmental continueq)

2.

Use of Resources (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Energy Consumption (continued)

Production involves the consumption of
natural gas, petrol and diesel. The Group
made use of electric forklifts for warehouses
to lower our reliance on fossil fuels. Diesel
boilers have been replaced with more energy
efficient gas boilers and it is expected to help
the Group achieving lower fuel cost, as well
as reducing emission of air pollutants with
cleaner energy.

Water Consumption

Water was supplied by Water Supplies
Department in Hong Kong's operations,
and was sourced from municipal water
supply system in Mainland China. Water
saving initiatives of the Group within the
reporting period included upgrading water
supply pipeline system within the plant
zone, upgrading washrooms with water
saving devices, and reusing wastewater from
production for washroom use.

The oil plants have upgraded the water
supply pipeline system during past years to
prevent potential leakage. 40% of industrial
wastewater is reused for factory washroom
and greening in detergent production plant.

Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group
were mainly plastic, cotton bags and paper
for the protection of finished products
during the reporting period. As part of the
target set in Shenzhen City Waste Reduction
Campaign 2014, the Group has put effort
into improvement on packaging methods and
greater efficient use of packaging materials.
Such practice allowed the Group to enjoy a
reduction of packaging material cost with
less environmental pollution and impact
caused by subsequent treatment processes.
In addition, the Group is planning to develop
more refill packaging products to reduce the
consumption of plastic bottle used as the
final packaging.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREARARES

A. Environmental continueq)

3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group strives to maximize resource utilization
and minimize waste within our operations to achieve
effective and efficient resource management,
we strictly comply with environmental laws and
regulations. The Group also encourages the staff to
adopt environmentally responsible behaviour and
to raise awareness of environmental protection, for
example, we encourage the staff to think before
printing and use more recycled paper. Furthermore,
electronic communication is encouraged to achieve a
paperless office.

B. Social
1. Employment and Labour Practices
(i) Employment

The Group deems employees as the most
important resource. The Group provides
competitive remuneration with various
benefits to attract and retain talents. Salary
is regularly reviewed with consideration
of the market trend and results from
salary surveys conducted by professional
consultants. Annual increment and year-
end performance bonus mechanism were
incorporated in the Group’s remuneration
policy. Statutory compliance is a minimum,
employees are entitled to provident funds,
social security insurance and housing fund.
Year-end bonus, life and health insurance,
employee privilege, meals and transportation
are provided. Fair terms on working hours,
holidays, termination of contract, fringe
benefits and leave entitlement are stipulated
on the employment contracts signed
between employees and the Group. Overtime
work shall be applied through submission
of application forms and approved by
departmental supervisors. Any disputes will
be settled according to the Group’s appeal
procedures in a just and prompt manner. The
Group is in compliance with all applicable
laws of Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") regarding labour rights and
employment.
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B. Social (continued)

1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

(i)

Employment (continued)
Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees
in respect of recruitment, training and
development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. The employees
are not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities on the basis of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other
discrimination prohibited by applicable laws
of Hong Kong and the PRC.

Appraisal System

The Group has a systematic and standardized
appraisal system to evaluate employees’
performances, assess their capabilities
and determine whether they are in line
with the Group’s business development. It
also provides a basis for promotion, salary
increase and a communication platform for
employees and management to set mutually
acceptable and measurable performance
standards, career development opportunities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. Social (continued)

1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Employee Health and Safety

The Group is committed to ensuring
occupational health and safety of employees
and complying with all applicable laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the
PRC. Occupational health and safety policy
is in place, for example, in PRC, new
employees are required to perform health
checks before employment starts, during
employment (on an annual basis) and before
employment ends. Employees exposing to
high occupational risks shall conform to
the statutory requirements on occupational
health checks and appropriate personal
protective equipment (“PPE") is provided
to employees according to the duties they
perform. Offices and canteens are assessed
by qualified institutions to ensure they meet
applicable national standards regarding
indoor environmental pollution control. The
Group also enters into contract with suppliers
to ensure that they meet occupational safety
standards while performing their works.
There was no work-related fatality in the
reporting period.

Development and Training

With “Human Resources” as one of the
core values, the Group believes that
strengthening capabilities of its staff can
benefit the Group and staff itself. Through
communication channels such as discussion
during performance appraisals, training
needs are identified so that training provided
can effectively address below goals:

a. Facilitate achievement of the Group's
and its departmental targets;

b. Increase productivity in every aspect of
working processes;

C. Enhance staff’s satisfaction; and

d. Assist staff's career development.
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B. Social (continued)

1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Development and Training (continued)

The Group’s training courses has four main
categories: mandatory, skill enhancement,
supervisory skills and managerial
development, targeted for various levels
of staff. During the reporting period,
employees have been provided with
both internal and external trainings on
numerous areas including health and safety,
customer services, product knowledge,
management systems, communication skills,
risk management, data security, financial
budgeting, etc.

Staff are also encouraged to attend
e-learning classes, seminars, team building
activities and knowledge sharing events to
advance their learning and skills, in which a
policy has been established particularly on
providing guidelines for employees to claim
for reimbursement and subsidy on training
and development activities, prerequisites,
rules and conditions, application process,
service commitment, etc.

Labour Standard

In pursuant to the Employment Ordinance
of the Laws of Hong Kong in terms of
employment management and the Labour
Law of the PRC, there were no child nor
forced labour in the Group’s operation. The
Human Resources Department performs
information check for every employee
candidates before interviews to ensure
compliance with all the applicable laws
in Hong Kong and the PRC regarding
employment of child or forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREARARES

B. Social (continued)

2 Operating Practices

(i)

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s procurement policy has
three major principles on procurement
management:

a. Buy only what the business operation
needs with speculative behaviour
prohibited;

b. Source from local supplies to reduce

transportation cost; and

C. Source from high quality and
competitive supplies to meet the
Group’s business strategy.

The policy states the Group’s procurement
strategy and provides guidelines and
procedures on procurement processes such
as sourcing new suppliers, assessing existing
suppliers, managing suppliers in breach
of the policy, tendering, quality assurance
and payment/refund arrangements. When
selecting and rating suppliers, the Group
considers criteria including product price and
quality, timeliness of delivery, payment terms,
food safety, environmental performance and
after-sales service.

It is essential to engage staff in maintaining,
monitoring and improving the overall Group’s
procurement management. The Group
highly encourages staff to take proactive,
comprehensive and stringent measures in
implementing measures to avoid unnecessary
loss and ensure utilization of its resources in
accomplishing the production, supply and
sales targets.
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B. Social (continued)

2,

Operating Practices (continued)

(i)

Product Responsibility
Food Health and Safety

The Group gives high importance to
food safety. Therefore, its food safety
management starts from supplier control.
Background, permits, licenses and certificates
of suppliers are checked by the Group to
ensure suppliers have no record in breaching
food safety standards and regulations. The
Group reiterates its meticulous selection
process of suppliers and every product must
be tested multiple times to ensure it is of
international food safety standard. The Group
is in compliance with all applicable standards
of Hong Kong and the PRC regarding
food safety. Moreover, all of the Group’s
production plants are certificated with 1SO
9001 Quality Management System standard
and ISO 22000 Food Safety Management
System standard and other certifications that
endorse international standards of quality
and environmental management. The Group
also fulfills relevant food safety and food
labeling requirements, and accomplished
the standards issued by World Health
Orgainsation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. Social (continued)

2

Operating Practices (continued)

(i)

Product Responsibility (continued)
Food Health and Safety (continued)

To ensure food materials are not
contaminated in any production process,
tests are performed against food or related
raw materials (including packaging materials
with direct contact with food) before entering
production processes, semi-products during
production and the final products. Testing
is done by the Group’s Quality Assurance
Department and we also engaged qualified
testing organisations to validate our results
and to provide customer independent
reports. The test results shall meet relevant
national and industrial standards before
proceeding to production or sales. Any
materials or products not meeting required
standards will be labelled, isolated and
assessed by related departments. Reasons
for failure in meeting standards will be
analysed and rectifying measures will be
implemented by related departments. The
Group also employs standard procedures on
cleaning and sterilization of food production
plants and associated equipment to ensure
a high standard of hygiene throughout the
production.

In case of any reported incidents regarding
product quality or safety, the Group deals
with the cases promptly and responsibly,
putting public health, safety and benefits at
top priority. Products required to be recalled
after assessments will undergo procedures
from the Group-established product recall

policy.
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HERELGHRES

B. Social (continued)

2. Operating Practices (continued)

(i)

Product Responsibility (continued)
Product Labelling

The labelling control policy ensures that
design and information of labels are in
compliance with all the applicable standards
and laws of Hong Kong and the PRC.
Labels are required to be approved by the
Legal Department and Quality Assurance
Department with records filed.

Promotion of Healthy Lifestyle

The Group strives to improve public well-
being by promoting healthy lifestyle. It
established a “Good Mother” website and
Knife Oil Facebook, which aims to share
resources about healthy and balanced
lifestyle with the public. Moreover, the
Group produces videos through social media
platforms in which registered dieticians
introduce nutritional values of its products,
shares recipes using nutritional ingredients
and organizes trainings to promote healthy
diets.

Customer Communication

The Group values any complaint or feedback
from customers as they provide the Group
with better understanding of customers’
concern and facilitate improvement of its
products and services. The Group also pays
special attention to enquiries regarding
health and safety aspects as they not only
increase customers’ understanding of its
products but also strengthen customers’
confidence in its brands. The Group pledged
to handle any enquiry or complaint cases
according to the standard procedure
established, provide prompt response and
keep traceable record of the cases in its
system. To ensure complaints are resolved
with customers’ satisfaction, complainants
will be invited to rate his/her satisfaction
and provide feedback regarding to their
complaint cases after the cases are resolved.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. Social (continued)

2

Operating Practices (continued)

(i)

Product Responsibility (continued)
Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights

The Group strives to protect its own IP rights
and respects third party IP rights according
to all related applicable laws and regulations.
It registers new IPs (including trademarks,
design and patents) in different parts of the
world, renew existing IP rights, supervise
usage of IPs and assess whether its IP rights
have been infringed by other parties. The
Group may take legal actions against any
alleged infringer.

The Group also ensures its service providers,
suppliers or business partners undertake and
warrant that all their deliverables or products
are their original creation and/or do not
infringe third party’s IP rights. Infringers are
liable to specified appropriate consequences
in the event of breach.

Data Protection

The Group strictly follows its policy, manual
and guideline and procedure on protecting
customer data. Before collecting personal
data from customers, the Group informs
customers of its intended purposes of which
the personal data collected will be used.
The Legal Department ensures that the
Group is in compliance with the Personal
Data Protection Ordinance of the Laws of
Hong Kong and any applicable laws in any
document, publicity and marketing activity.
Procedures on handling, storing, transferring
and erasing customers’ personal data
collected is reviewed periodically.
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B. Social (continued)

2,

Operating Practices (continued)

(iii)

Anti-corruption

The Group takes a zero-tolerance approach
to bribery and believe in conducting our
business in an ethical manner with high
integrity. The Group has implemented
policies on anti-corruption and procedures
concerning offering or accepting gifts and
gratuities. All employees are required to
become acquainted with and to abide by
these policies and procedures. Any fraud,
corruption, irregular transactions or breach
of ethics shall be reported to the Internal
Audit Department. Such reports, if any, shall
be treated in strict confidence to protect the
identity of the whistleblower.

The Group was in compliance with the
applicable laws on prohibiting corruption and
bribery of Hong Kong and the PRC. There was
no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the reporting period.
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B. Social (continued) B. ?‘i%(%)

Community Investment

The Group has long been committed to striving
for the betterment of society and holds strongly
the belief to support for social responsibility. In
recognition of our support for community affairs
and corporate citizenship, we were given the Caring
Company Award for the ten consecutive years by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. We maintained
our strong tradition of participating in various
charitable causes during the year. In 18 July 2016,
we collaborated with the Hong Kong Federation
of Youth Groups to conduct a baking workshop
for youth volunteers at the Lam Soon Bakery
Academy. After their training, those volunteers were
responsible to organise series of cookie-making
classes for 115 underprivileged families in 8 different
districts to share the joy of baking. In 5 November
2016, we collaborated with The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries to organise a “Cookies
Baking Workshop” for 14 children from 2 centres
of SAHK at Lam Soon Bakery Academy learning
and enjoying a joy of making cookies. Throughout
the year, we also donated our products to various
charitable organisations such as flour, edible oils and
flour to Hong Chi Association; as well as edible oil
products to Helping Hand.
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Volunteer Baking Workshop 18 July 2016
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5 November 2016
201611 H5H

Distribution of Christmas gifts to beneficiaries 16 December 2016
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13 January 2017
201718131
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The Community Chest Walk for Millions — New Territories 26 February 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 64, the Chairman of the Company since October 2006
and has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the Chairman
of Board Nomination Committee and a member of Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad ("HLCM", and together with its subsidiaries,
the “Hong Leong Group”), the ultimate holding company of the
Company. He is the Executive Chairman of Guoco Group Limited
("GGL"), a Hong Kong listed subsidiary of HLCM. He is also a
director of GGL's key listed subsidiaries and associated companies
including as the Non-Executive Chairman of GL Limited (“GL"),
and a Director of GuocolLand Limited (“GuocolLand”), Hong Leong
Bank Berhad and Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and has extensive
experience in various business sectors, including but not limited
to finance, investment, manufacturing and real estate. He is the
brother-in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive Director of
the Company.

Joseph Leung

Aged 56, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in May 2012.

Mr. Leung holds a bachelor degree in Economics and a master
degree in Business Administration (Marketing) from Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University, USA.

Mr. Leung has over 30 years of experience in the food and
consumer goods sectors. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Leung worked in several multinational Fortune 500 corporations,
including Sara Lee Corporation, Heinz USA and R. J. Reynolds
Tobacco Company USA. In his previous role, Mr. Leung served
as the General Manager of Sara Lee International’s Household &
Body Care business in Greater China. During his 20-year tenure
at Sara Lee, Mr. Leung held various leadership positions in both
management and marketing/marketing research and overseeing
a diverse portfolio of brands in the food, apparel, household, and
body care categories in Asia and the United States of America.

Since December 2014, Mr. Leung has been an adjunct professor
of Henan University of Technology. In February 2017, Mr. Leung
was appointed as a member of the 14th Session of Changzhou
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference.
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Tang Hong Cheong

Aged 62, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in September 2016.

Mr. Tang is the Director and the President & CEO of GGL. He
is also the Group Managing Director of GL and a Director of
Guocoland. He held various senior management positions in
different companies within the Hong Leong Group. Prior to
his appointment, he was the President/Finance Director of HL
Management Co Sdn Bhd. He was also a Director of Southern
Steel Berhad, and the Non-Executive Chairman of GLM REIT
Management Sdn Bhd, the Manager of Tower Real Estate
Investment Trust.

Mr. Tang is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
and has over 40 years of broad-based and C-suite expertise in
finance, treasury, risk management, operations and strategic
planning. He possesses in-depth knowledge in investment,
manufacturing, financial services, property development, gaming
and hospitality industry.

Whang Sun Tze ph.p.

Aged 73, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 69, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is a non-executive director of GGL. Mr. Tan holds a
Bachelor of Science first class honours degree in engineering
from University of Surrey and a Master of Science degree in
management from Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He had
previously worked in Geneva in 1974 with the United Nations
Conference on Trade and Development. He had also served in
the Singapore Civil Service as a Colombo Plan Scholar 1975-1978
before coming to work in Hong Kong with a financial services
company and a major U.S. bank. Mr. Tan has extensive experience
in property investment, financial and investment management
services.
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Tsang Cho Tai

Aged 67, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Tsang is also a member of
Board Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsang was re-designated as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1999 and as Non-Executive Director in
2004.

Mr. Tsang was the General Manager, Business Planning of Guoco
Management Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of GGL
and the chief financial officer of GGL. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") as well
as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales.

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 68, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is the
Chairman of Board Audit and Risk Management Committee and a
member of Board Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of the
HKICPA. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking, finance
and investments. He worked for a number of well-known financial
institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the audit committee, members of the nominating committee,
valuation committee and share repurchase committee of The
Taiwan Fund Inc., which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

He also holds other directorships in a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong including independent non-executive director, the
audit committee chairman and members of the compensation
and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings Limited;
independent non-executive director, audit committee chairman
and member of the remuneration committee of Tristate
Holdings Limited; and independent non-executive director, audit
committee chairman and member of the nomination committee of
Convenience Retail Asia Limited.
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Au Chee Ming

Aged 66, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in August 2009. He is the
Chairman of Board Remuneration Committee and a member of
Board Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.

Huang Lester Garson, J.pr.

Aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in November 2013. He is a member of
the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee and the Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Huang is a practicing solicitor and notary public, and is
currently a managing partner of P. C. Woo & Co., a solicitor’s firm
in Hong Kong. Mr. Huang became a qualified solicitor of Hong
Kong in March 1985 and has over 30 years of post qualification
experience. Mr. Huang graduated with a Bachelor of Laws from
the University of Hong Kong in 1982 and a Master of Education
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2006.

In 2002, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region appointed Mr. Huang as a Justice of the Peace.

Mr. Huang serves as a member of the Hospital Authority. He is also
a non-executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission.
Mr. Huang is also the chairman of the Standing Committee on
Language Education and Research. He was President of the Law
Society of Hong Kong from 2007 to 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has adopted
a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP Code”),
which is based on the Corporate Governance Code (the "HKEx
Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The CGP Code is reviewed from time to time
and updated as appropriate to align with the revised provisions
of the HKEx Code. Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s risk management and internal controls and
procedures in light of changes in regulations and developments in
best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the HKEx Code for
the year ended 30 June 2017, except where otherwise stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated by the
HKEx Code. As such, the Company considers that such provisions
are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant provisions of the
HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct
governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 72.

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the

RAFEARBIFAHEERH  A2FZE
EERECEHNENEESEREERN -

EZE28 RRASRUER

REAFER  HBITMAESESHER—RR
RARE - ARESRAFEALFESS SR

board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out in ERERE2HBHNT R :
the table below:
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
EE2ER N
HER S, HERE,
Name of Director BEEHS HTERERE BITEBINH
Chairman: XE
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai /L 4/4 1/1
Group Managing Director: EEESARKE
Mr. Joseph LEUNG REEEE 4/4 11
Non-Executive Directors: EHTES :
Mr. TANG Hong Choeng BEELE 3/3 1/1
(Note)(H1aE)
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze =FEEL 4/4 11
Mr. TAN Lim Heng R AR B 5 A 4/4 0/1
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHEFELE 4/4 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFEHITES :
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBSLE 4/4 1/1
Mr. AU Chee Ming BB 4/4 1/1
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson EEALE 4/4 11
Note: BEE -

Mr. TANG Hong Cheong (“Mr. TANG") was appointed as Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 September 2016. Three Board meetings were
held during the term of office of Mr. TANG (from 1 September 2016 to 30
June 2017).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board of Directors (continued)
Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad strategies,
monitors and controls operating and financial performance and
sets appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Decisions involving financial statements,
dividend policy, material contracts and major investments and
divestments are reviewed and subject to approval by the Board.
Other main roles of the Board are to review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and to ensure
that adequate risk management and internal control systems and
management information systems are in place, including being
in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of applicable
laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value
for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable request,
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, if any.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) for the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the date
of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs continue to
be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board
The family relationships among the members of the Board are

disclosed under “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 51 to 54 of this annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development
Programme

Pursuant to the HKEx Code which took effect on 1 April 2012,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place a training and development
programme for directors which includes (i) induction/
familiarisation programme for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programme for
directors.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, all directors of the Company
namely, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, Joseph LEUNG, TANG Hong
Cheong, WHANG Sun Tze, TAN Lim Heng, TSANG Cho Tai, LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony, AU Chee Ming and HUANG Lester Garson, received
regular briefings and updates on the Group's business, operations,
risk management and corporate governance matters. Materials
on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to
the Group were provided to the directors. They also attended
regulatory update sessions and seminars on relevant topics.
All directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training record pursuant to the CGP Code.

Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD") are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. Joseph LEUNG is the GMD
of the Company.

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its smooth and
effective functioning. The GMD is responsible for the vision and
strategic direction of the Group, implementing the policies and
decisions of the Board, initiating business ideas and corporate
strategies to create competitive edge and enhancing shareholder
wealth, setting the benchmark and targets for operating
companies, overseeing the day-to-day operations and tracking
compliance and business progress.
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Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.

Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Board Nomination Committee were in place
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference, approved by the Board, which
set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms of reference
now being posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are INEDs.
The list of the chairman and members of each board committee is
set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC")

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC are to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management, as
well as to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment. Detailed terms of reference of the BRC are accessible
on the Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)

The BRC has adopted the approach under code provision B.1.2(c)(i)
of the HKEx Code to determine, with delegated responsibility
and authorisation by the Board, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

For the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. AU Chee Ming (Chairman
of the BRC), KWEK Leng Hai and HUANG Lester Garson. Mr.
AU Chee Ming and Mr. HUANG Lester Garson are INEDs of the
Company whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the
Company.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member was as follows:

EEZEE
rEeyMEEe(ESEMER ) (&)

EXTEMZSCRESERTRENRED K
B PP RISEB. 1. 2(0) ()R <FAMRSCET B 2 75
o NEEERNBITESRSREEAEZH
158 o

RAFER ESeMESHERALE(ES
EMEEERE)  FSBREREZMALLEA
B BRARERERZAREYRARRAENL
FHTES  MBSBELENBEARRERE -

RAFER  HBTMRESESHES SR -
BRIKEHFE ZBEREIMT

Number of

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting Held

HERE,

Name of Director EEHA BITERRE
Mr. AU Chee Ming (Chairman) BB LEE (EE) 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai L/ ELE 2/2
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson EERMLE 2/2

Work done for the financial year 2016/2017

- reviewed and recommended directors’ fees for non-
executive directors for the financial year 2015/2016;

- approved the discretionary bonuses for executive directors

and senior management for the financial year 2015/2016;

- reviewed the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management;

- reviewed the Employee’s Share Option Scheme;

- reviewed its terms of reference and remuneration policy for
directors and senior management; and

- deliberated the statement relating to the BRC for inclusion
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC") (continued)
Level and Make-up of Remuneration

The Group’s remuneration scheme for executive directors and
senior management is linked to performance, service seniority,
experience and scope of responsibility and is based on the
provisions in the Group’s Human Resources Manual, which are
reviewed from time to time to align with market/industry practices.

The level of remuneration of non-executive directors reflects the
level of responsibilities undertaken by them.

The fees of directors, including non-executive directors, are
recommended and endorsed by the Board for shareholders’
approval at the Company’s annual general meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 30
June 2017 are provided in note 10 to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC")

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role of the BNC is to make recommendations to
the Board on the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board, to review the independence of independent non-executive
directors, the suitability of directors who will stand for re-election
and directors’ continuous training and development programme
and to formulate a policy concerning board diversity, monitor
the implementation of such policy and to review the same, as
appropriate. Detailed terms of reference of the BNC are accessible
on the Company’s website.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yiu, Anthony and AU Chee Ming. Mr. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony and Mr. AU Chee Ming are INEDs of the Company whilst
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)

During the year, one BNC meeting was held. The BNC had also
met after the financial year end to discuss/review the Company’s
matters for the year ended 30 June 2017. The individual
attendance of each member is as follows:
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HERE,

Name of Director BEHS BITEBRE
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) PLBEE(EE) 71
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERUBEE 1”1
Mr. AU Chee Ming @A k% 1”1

Work done during the year

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity and
gender of the Board (including the mix of skills, knowledge,
experience, competences of directors, and the balance
between executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) annually and is of the view that there is
an appropriate and diverse mix of skills and experience;

reviewed and accessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

reviewed the profile and participation in the Company’s
affairs by directors who will stand for re-election at annual
general meeting;

reviewed the continuous training and development
programs undertaken by directors to ensure that an
appropriate program is in place;

reviewed the terms of reference of the BNC and the Board
Diversity Policy; and

deliberated the inclusion of statement related to BNC in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC") (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy formulating a
policy concerning board diversity, monitoring the implementation
of such policy and to review the same, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of such policy. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, skills, knowledge, professional
experience and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The BNC reviews annually this policy to ensure its
effectiveness and discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommends any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC")

The Company established the Board Audit Committee on 29
December 1998 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. On 17 February 2016, the
Board has resolved to rename the Committee as Board Audit and
Risk Management Committee ("BARMC").

The BARMC oversees the financial reporting process and assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system of
risk management and internal control. The BARMC meets with
the Company’s external and internal auditors, and reviews their
audit plans, the internal audit programmes, the results of their
examinations as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control. It also reviews directors’
interests in contracts and connected transactions. The BARMC
reviews the Group's and the Company’s financial statements and
the auditors’ report thereon and submits its views to the Board.
Detailed terms of reference of the BARMC are accessible on the
Company’s website.

For the year, the BARMC comprised Messrs. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony
(Chairman of the BARMC), TSANG Cho Tai and HUANG Lester
Garson. Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony and Mr. HUANG Lester Garson
are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr. TSANG Cho Tai is the non-
executive director of the Company.
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Board Committees (continved)

Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
("BARMC") (continued)

During the year, five BARMC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member was as follows:

Name of Director EEHE

EEZES

ExgEnkAREREZES((EARA
REZRSE]) (A)

REAFER  HBTAREERAREEZES
e ERREHFEZBEREIWMT ¢

Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
BIEBERHY

Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Chairman) ERBEE(FE)
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai BHELE
Mr. HUANG Lester Garson BERASLE

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BARMC
during the year:

- reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of internal control and enterprise risk management;

- reviewed the consolidated financial statements and results
of the Group;

- reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

- reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting
policies;

- reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong on
the Company’s accounts;

- reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and
approved the external audit fee;

- reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes;
and

- reviewed connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 89 to 96 of this annual
report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year is set out in note 8 to the
financial statements on pages 147.

Risk Management and Internal
Control

The risk management and internal control system is designed to
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its business
activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
risk management and internal controls, has developed a set of
Enterprise Risk Management framework (“ERM framework”) for
the Group and set forth in its policy and procedures to assist in:

- identifying the enterprise risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

- developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

- monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The ERM framework consists of interactive processes for each of
our business units to constantly identify and access risks in terms of
their potential impact and probability of occurrence, as well as to
establish and implement relevant procedures and internal controls
for risk mitigation, ongoing monitoring and periodic reporting by
management to ensure that residual risks after taking into account
risk mitigating measures fall within the risk appetite and tolerance
set by the Board.

The Board has entrusted the BARMC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the ERM framework of the Group.
In discharging this responsibility, the BARMC, assisted by the
Group Internal Audit Department (“GIAD"):

- ensures that new and emerging enterprise risks are
promptly identified by management;

- assesses the adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks;

- monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems; and

- ensures the Group’s risk register is up-to-date and risk
profile reports are furnished by management to the BARMC
review.

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BARMC to ensure their effectiveness,
supplemented by the other reports from GIAD on the Group's
internal control and risk management findings.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.
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Risk Management and Internal
Control (continued)

The Board, through the BARMC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
considers that it is adequate and effective covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal controls as
set out in the CGP Code.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

(a) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings
("EGM")

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”), the Directors shall on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”)
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholder(s) having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM
of the Company.

The requests must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the meeting and may include the text
of a resolution that may properly be moved and is/are
intended to be moved at the meeting. The request must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary in hard copy form.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings

(i)

(ii)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to propose
a person for election as a director are as follows:

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s registered office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgment of the
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such meeting.

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution to be
put forward at a general meeting:

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an annual general meeting
("AGM") if they:

- represent at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM; or

- at least 50 shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim
report, various notices, announcements and circulars.

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which will
be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and the Company. Other than AGM, EGM shall be held
pursuant to relevant rules and regulations if required. Shareholders
shall receive explanatory circulars and proxy forms relating to the
EGMs. Proxy arrangements for the general meetings are in place
for shareholders who are unable to attend the meetings in person.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines of the
Company, which are available on the Company website, in order
to enable them to make any query in respect of the Company or to
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Hongkong Managers
and Secretaries Limited at Units 1607-8, 16th Floor, Citicorp
Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse the
Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the Company
website www.lamsoon.com. Information on the Company website
is updated on a regular basis.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEREE

The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 205 to 207.

Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 205 to 207.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Review of Operations
and Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this annual
report.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2017 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year ended
are set out in the financial statements on pages 97 to 207.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
17 November 2017 a final dividend of HK$0.23 per share. This,
together with the interim dividend of HK$0.12 per share paid
on Wednesday, 15 March 2017, will amount to a total dividend
of HK$0.35 per share for the year (2016: interim dividend of
HK$0.10, final dividend of HK$0.18 per share). Subject to
shareholders’ approval, the final dividend will be payable on
Thursday, 7 December 2017 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on Friday, 24 November 2017.
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Closure of Register of Members

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting:

Closure dates of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

15 November 2017 (Wednesday)
to 17 November 2017 (Friday)
Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 14 November 2017
(Tuesday)

Record date 17 November 2017 (Friday)

Annual General Meeting 17 November 2017 (Friday)

For ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend*:

Closure date of Register of
Members (both days inclusive)

23 November 2017 (Thursday)

to 24 November 2017 (Friday)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:30 p.m. on 22 November 2017

(Wednesday)

Record date 24 November 2017 (Friday)

Proposed final dividend
payment date

7 December 2017 (Thursday)

(* subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Members, no
share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer Office —
Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited at Units 1607-8, 16th
Floor, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge transfers.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 23 to the financial statements.
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Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

LEUNG Joseph, Group Managing Director**
TANG Hong Cheong*

WHANG Sun Tze*

TAN Lim Heng*

TSANG Cho Tai*

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony*

AU Chee Ming*

HUANG Lester Garson, J.P.*

*  Non-executive director
** Executive director
# Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association and Code A.4.2 of the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices of the Company, Messrs. LEUNG Joseph, WHANG Sun
Tze and TAN Lim Heng will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM"). All of them,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year ended
30 June 2017 or during the period from 1 July 2017 up to
the date of this report is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.lamsoon.com).

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangement or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every director
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors
and officers liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against its directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
the "Group”) with GuolLine Group Management Co. Limited
("GGMC") and GOMC Limited ("GOMC") on 2 July 2014 for
provision of services by GGMC or GOMC (the “Service Provider”)
to the Company and/or its subsidiaries, which include, among
other things, overview of businesses and operations, investment
management and financial management disciplines, treasury and
risk management, key managerial recruitment and retention as
well as other operating practices and procedures, accounting,
corporate advisory, legal, company secretarial and other services
(the "“Services”).

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2017.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreement comprise a
monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$50,000 (or such amount
as agreed from time to time between the Service Providers and
the Company) and an annual fee (the “Annual Fee”) equal to 3
percent of the annual profits before tax of the Company and the
subsidiaries as shown in the audited profit and loss accounts for
the relevant financial year, subject to appropriate adjustments.
The total fee, being the sum of the Monthly Fee, the Annual Fee
and the total amount of any fees paid or payable by the Group to
any Hong Leong Group Company for services of a similar nature
as the Services are subject to an annual cap of HK$23 million (the
“Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years ending 30 June
2017.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, and thus they are associates of
a connected person of the Company under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). HLCM is deemed to be invested in
shareholding in the Company. The transactions under the Master
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreement for
the year were entered into:

- in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

- on normal commercial terms or better; and

- according to the agreement governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

(2) the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$10,177,000 which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$23 million as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 3 July 2014.

New master services agreements were entered into by the
Company with (1) GGMC; and (2) GOMC respectively on 7 July
2017 for a term of three financial years from 1 July 2017 to 30
June 2020.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Master Services Agreement (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’'s continuing
connected transactions regarding the master services agreement
mentioned above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except for the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2017, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the "Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:

EERKRD -  HEROKE
2 Em

REZZB—tHXA=+H  SFESHRAQXAHR
HEMAEBEE (ERXRBSRPERG([FEH
REBEHRG D EXVR) BEARBESZRHE
RPIEIS2FRBEMR BT B P PIE 2R
DREBRAFT ZXARS - HERORES
ZEERBRBELTRAZ LT AREBETE
ZRGNBRESTH(THRETFA D AMEARQF
REBBMAERXZMARDB (B 2 #s
LU

(A) The Company (A) AT
Approximate
percentage of
total number of
Number of ordinary shares of
shares/ the Company
underlying in issue
Nature of shares held ERATERIT
Name of director interest BERR, Note Total TERER
EEHA ERME HEROGHE Btat et BAEDL
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
Bes fBA
Joseph LEUNG Personal 5,000,000  Note (a) 5,000,000 2.05%
RZH @A Btat(a)
WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,123,743
ZEE A
Corporate 19,326  Note (b) 27,143,069 11.15%
NG KtEEb)
TAN Lim Heng Personal 274,000 274,000 0.11%
R ok £ A
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 200,000 200,000 0.08%
ERR @A
HUANG Lester Garson Family 150,000 150,000 0.06%
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)
(A) The Company (continued) (A) ERDQTNE)
Notes: BEE -

(B)

(a)

The interests of Mr. Joseph LEUNG represent the interests
in 5,000,000 underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company exercisable within a
period of up to 30 months following the notification of
entitlement to confirm the vesting and the number of
options exercisable in accordance with the terms of grants.
The granting of share options for 2,570,000 ordinary
shares were approved by the shareholders at the 2013
annual general meeting of the Company as required under
the Listing Rules and the terms of Executive Share Option
Scheme 2013.

The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869
ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR Investment
Company, Limited (“SGR") and T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.") respectively. Dr. WHANG
Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in SGR and
T.C. & Co. respectively.

Associated corporations

(a)

RrBAEESEZEEDRELRD
ARFATERDABEZAQT
5,000,000 8% EHEABR 17 - MEZ AR 1252
BRCEBARIAABEC-.BERE
EUTHENAEEZEE  RERT
ZHEFRTENE RSB =1TEAR
TE - RELTRIAR-T-=FT
BAERMGRABRETE KRR
E 0 2,570,000 R0 2 RBECE
AABRERR-ZE-—=ZERRBEE
SEHAERE -

FEBEvERRRELEBLER
SGR Investment Company, Limited
(TSGR B T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited([ T.C. & Co. 1) &
BEFEAEARRT8,457RE B K869
REBR 2R - ELEHEESGR
R T.C. & Co. AHIFEE 95.41% &
59.52% Z B 1D HE o

(B) HHEEE

Approximate
percentage of
total number

of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying IHEEEE
associated Nature of shares held BRTLAER
corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total Fok i 1|
HEEE R E=pE BEME HEROEE A Bt BOl
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.61%
(Malaysia) Berhad B! @A
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
("GGL") 2B A
BEEEERAHE
(TEVESE D) TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 130,000  (a) 130,000 0.04%
wEe fBA
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
Bk B A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%
2% 5PN
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENRKRG - HEARORE
Underlying Shares and Debentures %5 2 FEh ()

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) #HHEEEE (&)
Approximate
percentage of
total number
of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying 1hREEE
associated Nature of shares held ERTEER
corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total B EA
HELEEEE EEng Mg HEROEE HF @gt Ebald
Guocoland Limited ("GLL") ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
BEEERRLR B8 A
((E%EHE]D
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 865,000 b) 865,000 0.07%
HWES A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BLE Rik
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,337,777 1,337,777 0.11%
IRk L A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 357,333 357,333 0.03%
ERiEES A
Hong Leong Bank Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 5,510,000 5,510,000 0.26%
BLE A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
BEE Rik
Hong Leong Financial Group KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,526,000 2,526,000 0.22%
Berhad (“"HLFG") BLE BA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 249,146 (c) 249,146 0.02%
BWEE A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
BLH Rk
TAN Lim Heng Personal 267,813 267,813 0.02%
R A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EERARMD - HERGORE
Underlying Shares and Debentures %5 2 FEh ()

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) MEESEE (&)

Approximate
percentage of
total number

of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying 1HREEE
associated Nature of shares held ERTEER
corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total BHEA
HELZEEE EEng EEME HEROEE HF @gt Ebald
Hong Leong Industries KWEK Leng Hai Personal 190,000 190,000 0.06%
Berhad B! BA
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 300,000
BEE A
Family 15,000 315,000 0.10%
Rk
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
BEE Rik
Guocoland (Malaysia) KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
Berhad (“GLM") BLE PN
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 300,000 (d) 300,000 0.04%
BES A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
PR A
Hume Industries (Malaysia) ~ WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
Sdn Bhd (“HIB") - fnkil Rk
GL Limited (“GL") TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 430,000 (e) 430,000 0.03%
HWES A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,100,000 1,100,000 0.08%
IR kL A
Malaysian Pacific Industries ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 71,250 71,250 0.04%
Berhad B8 A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued)

EERKRMD - HERORE
HFZRER

(B) AEEEEE (&)

Approximate
percentage of
total number

of ordinary
shares of
associated
Number of corporation
shares/ in issue
Name of underlying HHEEEE
associated Nature of shares held BRTLER
corporation Name of director  interest BER®B,  Note Total B EA
BB LB AR EEnE s HERGEE W st Bk
The Rank Group Plc KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,026,209 1,026,209 0.26%
("Rank”) DL A
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 200,000 (f) 200,000 0.05%
HEE PN
TAN Lim Heng Personal 152,882 152,882 0.04%
PR A
Hume Industries Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 205,200 205,200 0.04%
("HIB") BSE A
TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 1,405,600 (9)
BWEE A
Family 16,200 1,421,800 0.30%
Rk
Southern Steel Berhad TANG Hong Cheong  Personal 131,000 (h) 131,000 0.03%
("SSB") WES PN
Notes: Ktat :

(@) The total interests of 130,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 10,000 ordinary shares of GGL and an option
in respect of 120,000 underlying shares of GGL pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

(b) The total interests of 865,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 65,000 ordinary shares of GLL and an option
in respect of 800,000 underlying shares of GLL pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0

The total interests of 249,146 shares/underlying shares
comprised 178,000 ordinary shares of HLFG and an option
in respect of 71,146 underlying shares of HLFG pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

The total interests of 300,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 90,000 ordinary shares of GLM and an option
in respect of 210,000 underlying shares of GLM pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

The total interests of 430,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 300,000 ordinary shares of GL and an option
in respect of 130,000 underlying shares of GL pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

The interests represented an option in respect of 200,000
underlying shares of Rank pursuant to an executive option
scheme of a Hong Leong Group Company.

The personal interests of 1,405,600 shares/underlying
shares comprised 1,275,600 ordinary shares of HIB and
an option in respect of 130,000 underlying shares of HIB
pursuant to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong
Group Company.

The total interests of 131,000 shares/underlying shares
comprised 1,000 ordinary shares of SSB and an option
in respect of 130,000 underlying shares of SSB pursuant
to an executive option scheme of a Hong Leong Group
Company.

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above were
long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company or its
associated corporations.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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2R .
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Share Options

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")

ESOS 2013 was approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and took
effect on 25 April 2013 (“Adoption Date”). Summary of details of
the ESOS 2013 is set out below:

The purpose of the ESOS 2013 is as follows:

(i) to align the long term interests of any executive or director
of the Group, who is eligible to participate in the ESOS
2013 (“Eligible Executives”) with those of the Shareholders
and encourage Eligible Executives to assume greater
responsibility for the performance of the business that they
manage;

(i) to motivate Eligible Executives towards strategic business
objectives;

(iii)  to reward Eligible Executives with an equity stake in the
success of the Group; and

(iv)  to make the total compensation package more competitive
in order to attract, retain and motivate high caliber
executives.

To be eligible for participation in the ESOS 2013, a person must be
at least eighteen (18) years of age and:

(i) be an executive of a member of the Group and has been
confirmed in service; or

(ii) be a director of member of the Group.

The Board may at its absolute discretion select and identify suitable
Eligible Executives to be offered options.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or transferred
by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the ESOS 2013 and any other share option scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s total number of shares
in issue at the Adoption Date of the ESOS 2013.

The maximum entitlement for any eligible executive in respect of
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the Company’s total number of shares in issue.
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Share Options (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

The Board may at its discretion determine the exercise price of an
option under the ESOS 2013 provided that the exercise price so
fixed shall not be less than greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the day
of offer of such option, which must be a business day; and (c) the
nominal value of a share (Note).

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 30 days (or such longer period of time as
may be permitted by the Board at its discretion) from the date of
making such offer.

The ESOS 2013 will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 25 April 2013.

Note:

The concept of par value of a share was abolished with effect from 3 March
2014 pursuant to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Share Options (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

As at 1 July 2016, there were 12,500,000 outstanding options
pursuant to the ESOS 2013.

During the year, no options were granted pursuant to the ESOS

R EBRE =)

20131THHAERPABRESE (2013
PRBRETE ] (#F)

R==F

—REEtA—HB  RE2013BHPRERE

sTEl - MARITEZRBERHER12,500,000 °

RER » LEBRIZFE2013RMZBETERER

2013. Details of the share options as at 30 June 2017 are as RE - R-ZBE—+EXA=1H  RODEE
follows: BN
Number of share options
ROREEEE
As at Granted Lapsed As at Exercise
1 July 2016 during during 30 June 2017 price
Date of grant Grantees RIZ-RE the year theyear RIZE—-tf per share
KRB ERA tA-H RERRE RFEERXXA AA=TH BRITEE
HK$  Notes
BE Wi
28 June 2013 LEUNG Joseph (Group 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 462 1,3&4
ZZ2-=FxAZ+NB Managing Director)
B
28 June 2013 Eligible Executives 6,600,000 - - 6,600,000 462 1&3
Z2-ZHXAZTN\R GERTHAR
26 November 2014 Eligible Executive 900,000 - - 900,000 680 2&3
—Z-mE RERTHAR
t-B=1xH
Total: 12,500,000 12,500,000
Notes: B -

1.

The vesting of the options is subject to the achievement of the
prescribed financial and performance targets and the contribution
criteria to be met by the grantees for the financial periods from 1
July 2012 to 30 June 2017.

The vesting of the options is subject to the achievement of the
prescribed financial and performance targets and the contribution
criteria to be met by the grantee for the financial periods from 1
July 2014 to 30 June 2017.

At the end of the relevant performance period as mentioned
in Notes 1 and 2 above, the Board Remuneration Committee
of the Company shall determine, at its discretion, the extent
of achievement of the financial and performance targets and
contribution criteria set out for that period, and decide on the
vesting of the options and the number of shares comprised in
the vested options. Thereafter, the grantees shall be notified of
the vesting of the options and shall be able to exercise the vested
options within an exercise period of up to 30 months following the
vesting of the options.

Mr. LEUNG Joseph is an option holder under Rule 17.07(ii) of the
Listing Rules.
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Share Options (continued)

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (“ESOS 2013")
(continued)

Save as disclosed herein, no options were vested, exercised, lapsed
or cancelled under the ESOS 2013 during the year. Accordingly,
the number of outstanding options was 12,500,000 at 30 June
2017.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"), the ultimate holding
company of the Company, maintain share option schemes or
plans or arrangements which subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year, under which eligible directors of the
Company may be granted share options for acquisition of shares
of respective companies concerned. Mr. TANG Hong Cheong, a
director of the Company, had acquired and held shares of certain
subsidiaries of HLCM in pursuance of a share option scheme
maintained by a subsidiary of HLCM during the year.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 30 June 2017, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed above)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRZERERS

RZZ—tFARXA=1H REFHERPEK
PIE336RBEMR BT BEMPAE - T3
BRERREXFAARBDESAFBEARART ZR
DHRBBRD P ZRRRG RABERD < #EH)
FAERRARDBEERA P ZXRRD KA
B AD 2 -

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares held interest

BEZRHAEE ®#mzz@HEsk

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM") 155,753,659 64.00%

QUEK Leng Chan 155,753,659 64.00%
BB

HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH") 155,753,659 64.00%

Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 155,753,659 64.00%

Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 155,753,659 64.00%

KWEK Leng Kee 155,753,659 64.00%

Note:

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in the Company
held by Guoline International Limited (“GIL"); (ii) 6,420,000 ordinary
shares in the Company held by Richly Choice Development (PTC) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying
shares of the Company of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease
Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuoLine Capital Assets Limited
("GCA") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HLCM.
Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuocoEquity Assets
Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco Group
Limited (“GGL"). GGL was 71.88% owned by GuolLine Overseas Limited
("GOL") which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue of
Section 316(2) of the SFO, HLCM was 49.27% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng
Chan as to 2.424% under his personal name, 46.534% via HLH which
was wholly-owned by him and 0.311% via Newton (L) Limited. Newton (L)
Limited was wholly-owned by Newton Capital Group Limited which was
2.424% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan and 46.534% owned by HLH.
HLIH held 34.69% interest in HLCM. Mr. KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92%
interest in Davos which in turn held 33.59% interest in HLIH.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

(continued)

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors of
the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee for a trust set up for the purpose of acquiring shares
of the Company to satisfy the exercise of options granted to
the Executive Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 April 2013,
purchased 1,414,000 shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at a total consideration of HK$12,962,000.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares and neither did the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group's revenue for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors.
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Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change in
information on the Company’s director is set our below:

Mr. TSANG Cho Tai, ceased to be a Director of Prime Orion
Philippines, Inc., a company listed on the Philippines Stock Exchange,
with effect from 27 June 2017.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 August 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZRBAHRES

KPMG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 97 to 207, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition

EARET SR

HRENSERERERMANEXRAE  RAY
FHGAMBBRRNEABRREENSR - &
LEERERMAEARERSMBHRRRLEA
EREFETEREN -RMAFTSHELEHEM
EBFHNER -

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 134

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of flour, edible oil and cleaning products are  Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
recognised as revenue when the relevant risk and included the following:

rewards of ownership of the products are transferred

to the Group’s customers according to the terms of the e
sales and purchase agreements entered into between

the Group and its customers.

Generally, management considers the relevant risk
and rewards of ownership of the products sold are
transferred to the Group’s customers when the goods e
are delivered to the customers’ premises.

The Group trades mainly with distributors and
supermarkets and has a large volume of individual
transactions which increases the risk of error in
recognising revenue.

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which could create an incentive

for management to record revenue inappropriately to
meet targets or expectations and because the large e
transaction volume increases the possibility of errors in
recognising revenue.

gaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the completeness,
existence and accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

challenging the revenue recognition policies
adopted by the Group by making inquiries of
management and inspecting a sample of sales and
purchase agreements to understand the terms of the
transactions with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

assessing the existence and identity of a sample
of new customers of the Group during the year
by performing background searches on these
customers;

comparing sales records for a sample of sales
transactions recorded during the year with relevant
underlying documentation, which included sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers;

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year end to
identify significant sales returns and inspecting
the underlying documentation in relation to these
sales returns to assess if the related adjustments to
revenue had been accounted for in the appropriate
accounting period;

90
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Revenue recognition (continued)

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 134 (continued)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (continued)

LN+

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following: (continued)

. assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period in accordance with the terms of sale as
set out in the sales and purchase agreements by
comparing details of these transactions with sales
invoices and goods delivery notes with evidence of
the customers’ receipt of the goods and the date of
receipt of the goods by the customers; and

o selecting a sample journal entries affecting
revenue raised during the year, adopting specific
risk-based criteria, and comparing the details of
these adjustments with the related underlying
documentation.
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WATER (&)
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Information other than the
consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYZRBAHRES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBEHRES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

We communicate with the Board Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Board Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kin Shing Guen.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 August 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE BT T BT T
Revenue A 5 4,814,412 4,708,012
Cost of sales SHEM A (3,791,268) (3,781,724)
Gross profit ER 1,023,144 926,288
Other income Hawg A 6 27,176 25,097
Selling and distribution expenses EERDHEHER (547,277) (512,652)
Administrative expenses THEHAR (183,928) (169,533)
Operating profit KRR 319,115 269,200
Finance costs & B AN 7 (48) (2,802)
Share of loss of a joint venture EBhegtECER 16 = (6)
Profit before taxation B B% A 5% A 8 319,067 266,392
Taxation FiIE 9(a) (46,016) (64,379)
Profit for the year BRELEER 273,051 202,013
Attributable to: FEAL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RANRRE 273,051 202,013
Non-controlling interests JEfE RIS - -
Profit for the year REZBER 273,051 202,013
Earnings per share BRER HKS$E ¥ T HK$BHT
Basic =R 12(a) 1.15 0.85
Diluted e 12(b) 1.12 0.84

FIRE105E207E 2 R EMERAMBRER 2
— 8 c BN TARARREEARFEENR
B2 REIRMEE -

The notes on pages 105 to 207 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
note 11.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEmaRkEtEZEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Profit for the year REERR 273,051 202,013
Other comprehensive income for the year & EH 2 HkEH
(after tax and reclassification (NMBRBEREFSEARE)
adjustments)
Items that may be reclassified HEWNEHF 7 BERHER2ER
subsequently to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHEESREEY
financial assets DNV EEED 3 2)
Exchange differences on translation of BE NGB QB I HRE
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries  FrE4 2 E X E5 (16,604) (103,492)
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEERKE
_ fortheyear,netoftax it N (SE) - (103,494)
Total comprehensive income for the year HREEZHKGEAEE 256,450 98,519
Attributable to: 1L
Equity shareholders of the Company RABRER 256,450 98,519
Non-controlling interests G R - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ZREEEUNZHHAEE 256,450 98,519
The notes on pages 105 to 207 form part of these financial FIREE1058207BE 2 REMF AT HFHREK <
statements. — &7 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R

At30June 2017 RZZE—+t&FESA=1+H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
BaE BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MERRE 13 561,302 583,088
Leasehold land e+ 14 74,260 77,937
Intangible assets mLEE 15 18,795 22,896
Interest in a joint venture EETERER 16 42,710 42,710
Deferred tax assets EIERIEEE 22 21 -
Available-for-sale financial assets THHESREE 17 185 182
Other non-current assets HiERBERE = 501
697,273 727,314
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7ZE 18(a) 648,900 542,975
Trade and other receivables B REMEWERR 19 392,066 382,798
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESERE 20 822,877 663,835
1,863,843 1,589,608
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B REMENERR 21 592,704 526,651
Amount due to a joint venture EEaEhERE 16 42,976 42,976
Tax payables FEATFR TR 9(c) 19,091 15,490
Obligations under finance leases BLEFHERIE 250 252
. 655,021 585,369
Netcurrentassets =~~~ #r®@EE 000000000000 1208822 1,004,239
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 1,906,095 1,731,553
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE 22 338 21
Obligations under finance leases BhEHERIE 255 530
.. 93 551
NET ASSETS BEE 1,905,502 1,731,002
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A M BRI R

At30June 2017 R=Z—+F<A=+H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-REF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BT BT
Capital and reserves EeREE

Share capital %N 23(a) 672,777 672,777
Reserves Ht A 1,222,012 1,047,374

Total equity attributable to equity AARRREGEER
shareholders of the Company 1,894,789 1,720,151
Non-controlling interests FEFIE R 10,713 10,851
TOTAL EQUITY IR 1,905,502 1,731,002

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 KHEEER _ZE—tFENA=THMERRKR

August 2017. REFIE o

LEUNG Joseph RZE WHANG Sun Tze EEHE

DIRECTOR BEE DIRECTOR EBE

The notes on pages 105 to 207 form part of these financial FIREE1058207BE 2 RIEMF AN HFHREK <
statements. — &7 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KAARRER
Investment Share Non-
Share  Surplus  revaluation ESOP  option Exchange  Genmeral  Revenue controlling Total
Gapital  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve Total interests  equity
il Rt

kR BORRE 28R
kxR EERR PRER 0 BR  ENER  -RER  MEBR o ARGER  RaEed
Note  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSOO0  HKS'00  HKS'000
ki E¥fn BRTn BRTn BRTn ERFn BRin BRfn BT BT MR ERTR

At1 July 2016 WZE-AELE-R 672,771 95,632 (1) (7.1 8,022 6,243 50,000 915204 1,720,151 10,851 1,731,002
Profit for he year KEERT - - - - - - - B M - B
Total other comprehensie  AEEEf2E

income for the year WaaE - - 3 - - (16,604) - - (16,601) - (16,601)
Total comprehensive income AFE2TUHEE

for the year - - 3 - - (16,604) - 305 256,450 - 256450

Equity settled share-hased ~ REREEZURRA

transactions ER%S - - - - 2139 - - - 2139 - 213
Purchase of ordinary shares  SRfSRIE RS RS

of the Company for KOACEER

share option schemes 230 - - - (1296) - - - - (12982 - (12982
Liguidation of asubsidiary ~ EEEEERHER

with non-controling ZHELE

interests - - - - - - - - - (138) (138)
Transfer from revenue resenve. B E R ERE

to surpls resenes Bidf - 068 - - - - - (2068 = = -
Finaldividend paid n respect EEERAKERE

of prior year 11(b) - - - - - - - (4600 (42,607) - (4.607)
Interim dividend paid i~~~ BAEEEADERE

respect of current year 103 - - - - - - - (2838) (28382 - (2838
... S - sy oo - - () @Em) () (61950)
At 30 June 2017 WE-tERAZTR 672,777 116314 (M (40,679 10,161 (10,361) 50,000 1,096,584 1,894,789 10,713 1,905,502
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRR
Investment Share Non-
Share — Surplus  revaluation ESop option  Exchange  General  Revenue controlling Total
apitl resemves reseme reseve  fesene resenie reserve resere Total  interests equity
AR Bt

k& BE7EE 2R
hx  BGER EEGR SREE 0 BR ENER  -RER  NEBR o ARMER  Maoh
Note  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  RKSOO  HKSOO  HKSOO0  AKSOOO
ki ERfn ERTn ERTx ERTn E¥Fn ERBfn BRfn ERTn BRTn ERTn EETx

At1 July 2015 RZE-TELR-H 672,117 83,300 8 Q38 6472 109,735 50,000 779846 1,680,240 10851 1,691,091
Profit for the year AEERA - - - - - - -3 00013 -0
Totalother comprehensive  ZEEEHRE

income for the year WRE%E - - 2 - - (103492) - - (103.494) - (103.49)

Total comprehensive income AFE2THHEE
for the year - - 2 - - (103492) - 202013 93,519 - 9,519

Equity settled share-hased ~ REREEZURRA
transactions EHLG - - - - 1,50 - - - 1,50 - 1,550

Purchase of ordinary shares  SRfsDIE RS RS
of the Company for share ~ AATZZER
option schemes () - - - (5,339 - - - - (5,335) - (5,335)

Transfer from revenue reserve BB EHERE
o surpls reserves BhEE S K - - - - - g - - -

Final dvidend paid n respect FAEETARARE
of prior year 11b) - - - - - - - 0% 309 - 0%

Interim dividend paid i+~ FAFETHBHRE

respect of current year 1) - - - - - - - (3830 (23830) - (383
. S T U <. < B )
At 30 June 2016 R-B-RERAZ1A 672,711 95,632 (1) 8,022 6,03 50000 915204 1,720,151 10851 1,731,002

The notes on pages 105 to 207 form part of these financial FIRE1058207BE 2 REMF AN HFHREK <
statements. — &7 o

102 Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREMRER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE-Z—tHFE A A=TILEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BT BT
Operating activities R
Operating profit KRR 319,115 269,200
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation and amortisation IRE R 8 63,595 68,838
Write-down of inventories FERE 18(b) 11,017 6,248
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) & Z W E 2 REEE
for trade receivables wR (=) 8 407 (14)
Interest income FEWA 6 (13,810) (14,432)
Net losses on disposal of property, HEVE BERZEZ
plant and equipment FE B 6 1,243 834
Net gain on liquidation of a subsidiary MR REE 2 F W& 6 (138) -
Share-based payment expenses BRESZNER 8 2,139 1,550
Net unrealised exchange losses REIREHFEE 8,029 7,244
Changes in working capital: EEESHEE) .
Increase in inventories FE & (122,634) (43,380)
Increase in amount due to a joint venture FEAHE & EERRIE 212N - 262
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B REMEWERER -
other receivables (1gm),wd (16,020) 9,345
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R EAMESRR ZIEM 69,875 98,717
Cash generated from operations REXBAEENRS 322,818 404,412
Taxation: g -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid SNEBREH (1,948) (902)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong 2B BUIBIE (40,153) (71,273)
Net cash generated from operating REEKFABELSTFE
activities 280,717 332,237
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GeRTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BtaE BT BT
Investing activities REED
Interest received EWFIE 13,810 14,432
Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposit held  FrixEEREIEBAB=1A
at bank with original maturity over LA EWVERITEBTE R
three months A () 10,141 (80,000)
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BERRER
equipment and intangible assets B EE (35,839) (34,030)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEME BERRE
property, plant and equipment P8 FIEFEE 8 376 135
_Net cash used in investing activities = RAZBAARSFE | (11,512) (99,463
Financing activities MESEE
Purchase of ordinary shares of the BRORERETEEE
Company for share option schemes NAT2EBR 23(a) (12,962) (5,335)
Net repayment of bank loans IRITERNWERUFRE = (337,000)
Net decrease in obligations under Rl E A EAIE ZFR D
finance leases (277) (228)
Interest paid 2 FE (48) (2,802)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders AFELARRRZRE
of the Company (70,989) (54,823)
_Net cash used in financing activities RARBAARSHEE | Ert) . (400,188)
Net increase/(decrease) in BHELRSEHETH
cash and cash equivalents #in G a) 184,929 (167,414)
Cash and cash equivalents REtBA—BZRER
at 1 July HEeZHE 583,835 800,343
Effect of foreign exchange Exgmsge
rate changes (15,746) (49,094)
Cash and cash equivalents RARB=+THZEER
at 30 June Re%EHE 20 753,018 583,835

The notes on pages 105 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is a holding company and its principal
activity is investment holding. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries include manufacturing, trading
and processing of edible oil, flour products and detergent
products in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Macau.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

1. —RER

MIE(EB)ERQBA(ARANH—B
REBEMEUINBRAT - ARAH
AMMEER ETELRMBURNEBH
RABABEIENKEH =T -3 -
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BER - ARFAMBARANEEXER
REE - hEARERRMRHERRM®
BHERKRERERNEE BES5RE
o

2. EESFBE
(a) &EEH

L BHRCRETBETMQ
S((EREFMAE ) REMZ
FrEERACE BB HREED)
(TBRFBHREED L) - A
BERERAERZER(EEH
BREER)  (FREER)
(TEBEHEN D RERE &
BEELARETRUREEB(D
ARG 2 WBEREMRA - &
BBBRTITESEBHERSZ M
ERAAEEZ EWARAU( LR
B D2 ERABBERIEE - TX
IHALAREMBLR (58
[AEE DKM EESTHTEE
BE o

BBETRMASCHEME TRA
EEASHEEERERRAMH
REFRMBIET REBIT &R
PEEMEELER - ME2(0RHEER
BEAKEARFERUEFEZR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2017 comprise the Group and the
Group's interest in a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- Available-for-sale financial assets (see note
2(9)); and

- Derivative financial instruments (see note
2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

2.

BEESTBE @)

(b)
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EEESTEHERMZHEMGTHNM
B - MRSF BT R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted all new or revised
HKFRSs, which term collectively includes HKASs
and Interpretations, issued by the HKICPA that
are mandatory for application for the current
accounting period of the Group. The adoption of
the new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that are relevant to the Group had no
material impact on the results and financial position
of the Group.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 31).

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

2. EESTBE@m
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a
joint venture (see note 2(e)) or an associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(I)(ii)).

Joint venture

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby
the Group or the Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

Joint venture (continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 2(f) and 2(I)(ii)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Joint venture (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(g)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over (ii) the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on
a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(I)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based
on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Costs include attributable
transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into the
categories of securities held for trading or held-to-
maturity securities are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
investment revaluation reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot
otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(I)(i)). Dividend income
from equity securities is recognised in profit or loss
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend. When the investments are derecognised
or impaired (see note 2(I)(i)), the cumulative gain or
loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments.

The fair value of financial instruments is based
on their quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period without any deduction for
estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities
are priced at current asking prices.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(I)(ii)). The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its present working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after an item of property, plant and
equipment has been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
the property, plant and equipment.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(I)(ii)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction, capitalised borrowing
costs and exchange differences to the extent that
it is an adjustment to borrowing costs during
the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

2.

BEESTBE @)

()

M BERRBIERASBR
T ERRER R AR (R M
20)(i) - EENHAEERER
AWRE  MEBZIBREEEE
EEFMEREEREREAR
HREM XA NER - £ -
BERRERABEENL
MEERRE  IBERMEHZ
EXHNHBERERTIEE
MefERERAREZEXH
MBS R A REMAZEY
X MERRENEENRRE
B MRS HERIEZE
I - BB R RBHVERINLA ©

T TR AR AR R R E R 1R 5
AR (RMEE2()() - BABEE
REZEHANEERZRRAS
EREERARELEZENH
B-JBEERARERBEREN
BEREIERYEAE  BEKAR
BEFLERL MERIED
SREBIYE BERRE -
HREIRET TEABERRAL
ERZR A REMFEE
&

114

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings and leasehold 2-25 years
improvements
Plant, equipment, furniture and 3-20 years

motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(I)(ii)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is
amortised from the date it is available for use and its
estimated useful life is as follows:

Enterprise planning resources 5 years
system (“ERP")
Trademarks 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the

Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with
the following exception:

Land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 2(l)(ii). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(1) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

U

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For investment in a joint venture
accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(e)),
the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with
note 2(I)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(l)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

BEESTBE @)

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

()  Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE#E
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity (i) REZFRESHAMENK
securities and other receivables FRE Y 3 18 (72 )
(continued)
For trade and other current receivables = o DL 85 K AR 51 BR
and other financial assets carried NE SR HEAMRE
at amortised cost, the impairment EWERR R S
loss is measured as the difference BEE  BEESE
between the asset’s carrying amount EUEEWIREE
and the present value of estimated BT ARRRER

future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(1) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

For available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-
sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.

BEESTBE @)

(nH EBEEREGE

(i) REIFZFREARMENR
FR7k Ay e (4E)

= RARHEEHE
EmMs  cHERE
EfRETRERN
RIEEEEND
HRBEREREP - &
BRERPERNR
STBEEWERA
(BHBREMAE
BEEBEKBHEE)
BB A FENE
B URMEZEE
ERES R E
0 AE TR B B
&

EREEHERERM
BUMHEESHE
ENRERE T
SHEERREE -
BREEEELY
EREREMH L
o BERMEE
WD ©

122

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited | Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(1) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEETBERmw®

(continued)

()  Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE#E
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (i) EMEZERRE

Internal and external sources of information AEENRSEREHLR

are reviewed at the end of each reporting T B0 K SN IR B R AR

period to identify indications that the B LR TINEERS

following assets may be impaired or, except EERME  RZATFER

in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss ZREBE(HERES

previously recognised no longer exists or may BRM REETFBEE

have decreased: RABEE LR -

- property, plant and equipment; - ME - BE KRR

& ;

- leasehold land; - HELT

= intangible assets; - BEEE ;

= goodwill; - (G

= interest in a joint venture; and = e ERE R

= investments in subsidiaries in the - QD) B AROR R
Company's statement of financial Rz RE AT Z
position. ®RE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(1) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair values less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit) (“"CGU").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

U

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. In the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable
proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(I)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, trade and other
receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses
for doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(q9) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the share options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to revenue
reserve).

2. EESTTHE W@

@ EEEF@)

(ii)

REXS

BETREZROZRBELR
FEESRIABEERSL
17 A8 55 71 B IR 40 5% A R Ak
B EREREM - X FETD
BA [0 % —EF R R
B.2ROIBBERTA
AEBEERRTREO
REEZRR - BEREEA
565 B R M 7 T E R
HEEZSRHDERE
B AV EREERBHY
RED AR YEZER
DRBEBBHIAE -

A UEERORDBEEZ
HEAERBHANFELR
e BREREBEHFTSE
EEBRRBZER  FAC
EEFRIANZEQIFE
ZRABAERIABRZIE
BERPIIZFIA LI
fR 10 &0 08 1 fk B 1 AR P
B oUHRIA/IHHBE
AERERELAR )
[ BRFR 4G T IR AR SR AR FE Y
BERHE (BREROR
BRMBEFEEERE)
BEREFEENFEERD
B IR 17 T 18 8 B8 49 £ Aok
R ERETEE - &
SEREROABERHE
BR BEEERBERT

BATHE)  RERBEE
ZEXHERE(EEE
AW zSf#E)

MIE(ER)BRAR | —E—LFFRH

129



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(q)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they related to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separated from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,

the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefit is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customer which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i)  Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on
or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at
the end of reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:
(a) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(b) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(c) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group'’s
parent.

2.
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5 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HE=-Z

—tERB=THLEFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.
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B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(w)

(x)

Related parties (continued)

Close family members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influence by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

Accounting Estimates and
Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management makes various estimates based on
past experiences, expectations of the future and other
information. Note 25 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
share options granted. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that may significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value. The determination of the useful lives and
residual value involve management'’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
and if the assessment result differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation for the year. The details of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 13.

3.
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B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

3. Accounting Estimates and
JUdgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

and goodwill

Determining whether property, plant and equipment
and goodwill are impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the property, plant and equipment and
goodwill have been allocated. The calculation of
value in use requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. If the estimation of value in use
is different, any reversal or further impairment will
impact the profits or losses of the Group. The details
of property, plant and equipment and goodwill are
disclosed in notes 13 and 15 respectively.

(c) Income taxes

At 30 June 2017, deferred tax assets of
HK$7,591,000 (2016: HK$6,331,000) in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised as set out in note
22. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$252,724,000
(2016: HK$286,420,000) and temporary differences
of HK$113,014,000 (2016: HK$121,317,000)
arising from impairment of certain property, plant
and equipment and leasehold lands due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the future profits generated
are less or more than expected, a write down or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss for
the period in which such a write down or further

recognition takes place.
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

4. Segment Reporting

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, the Group has two reportable segments,
as described below. Businesses in each reporting segment
have similar operating and currency risks, class of customer
for products, distribution channels and safety regulation.
The following summary describes the operations in each

segment:

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range of
food products including flour and edible oil.

Detergent:  the manufacture and sale of household and
institutional cleaning products.

(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities

The Group’s most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit
from operations”, the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
deferred tax assets, interest in a joint venture and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
tax payables, all trade creditors and accruals
attributable to the manufacturing and sales activities
of the individual segments, and obligations under
finance leases with the exception of amount due
to a joint venture, deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.

4. DIMRE

AEEC2HMET2 KB - HA A
AAEEESETHREEAEARNBZR
BERNARXN -3 - BELEDIHER
BHRELANEERERAR ERER

9 HYRENZ2RE - T MR

EABLEE :

a8 WERASH—RIBRE
R EEEHRA R -

ERAR . WERSHRARIED
ERAR -

(a) DB SERAMK

AEEBRSETHREEASRE
THEREEEFEREIE 2
R -BEREE:

ARBEDEENZRRAER
[EERN - BTEHEER
A AEE BRI EPE
BRER D 2EE (MBLQF
FIRETHRAR) EHE -
# o

THEEREENENEE - &
FREERRBEE - WIELEKRE
BE AELERBRHMEE
BERI - 2HMEBEEEZHE
oMz EERBEETHEIGEZ
ENBR - B BN RAKRER
BR URBEHERE  HE
NEELENE BEHIBREE
REMEES BRI o

MIE(ER)BRAR | —E—LFFRH

141



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

4. Segment Reporting (continued) 4. DEHE @)
(a) Segments results, assets and liabilities (a) EpEE - BEERBE(E)
(continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable

UTHERRETAEERSE
28D

segments as provided to the Group’s most senior THEEBEAEZRKEFTZ2HK
executive management is set out below. LIELR
2017 2016
“E-t% ZE-RE
Segment Segment
Food Detergent Total Food  Detergent Total
‘R RRER 24 B FERR  2REes
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Fn  EEFr  BETT BEFn  BEFn BRI
Revenue from external HARFZBA
customers 4,217,895 594,061 4,811,956 4,115,823 587,920 4,703,743
Reportable segment profit W 2H7 &2 ELEF
from operations 330,589 51,885 382,474 236,606 84,623 321,229
Interest income FEWA 10,071 1,517 11,588 9,366 4,874 14,240
Finance costs EEES (48) - (48) (2,802) - (2,802)
Depreciation and HEREH
amortisation (54,554) (1,590) (56,144) (61,665) (1,738) (63,403)
Other material profitor ~ HMEEBHEER
loss items:
- Net exchange (losses) - BEH (B8) /Wi
gains (3,686) 100 (3,586) (404) 1,291 887
- Impairment losses -BESRWEZHE
(recognised)/reversed EiE(E:2) /B
for trade receivables (407) - (407) 24 (10) 14
Taxation e (24,151) (12,446) (36,597) (22,297) (19,810) (42,107)
Reportable segment assets 2RI B EE 1,971,273 197,912 2,169,185 1,884,438 173,980 2,058,418
Reportable segment 2P EE
liabilities 550,889 117,248 668,137 465,278 108,365 573,643
Additions to non-current MK A MERHEE
segment assets 26,766 660 27,426 18,600 625 19,225
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

(b)

4, Segment Reporting (continued) 4. ﬁﬁl&*ﬁ%(g)
Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) AEHBRosB2Z2UA - BF
revenue, profit or loss, assets and R -EERABBENHE
liabilities
2017 2016
=F-t%F —F-RE
HK$’000 HK$°000
B FT BT T
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue EEX: a4 PN 4,811,956 4,703,743
Service and rental income BRAEFAE S WA 2,456 4,269
Consolidated revenue mEWA 4,814,412 4,708,012
Profit i Al
Reportable segment profit from A 2D H 2 L& REF
operations 382,474 321,229
Share of loss of a joint venture EheErEZEE - (6)
Finance costs RE KA (48) (2,802)
Unallocated exchange gains/(losses) AoBzERWE
(B518) 1,234 (2,761)
Unallocated head office and corporate RO B2 AR
expenses TEEA (64,593) (49,268)
Consolidated profit before taxation FREBRBANER 319,067 266,392
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AE2RSHB2EE 2,169,185 2,058,418
Elimination of inter-segment 220 [ FE WL FUE 2 1K 8
receivables (64,863) (36,764)
2,104,322 2,021,654
Interest in a joint venture EEERER 42,710 42,710
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 21 -
Unallocated head office and ROBMZBARR
corporate assets THEEE 414,063 252,558
Consolidated total assets REHBEE 2,561,116 2,316,922
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

D EBIRE @)

TEHSH2BWA - BF
fR-EERBENHERGE)

4. Segment Reporting (continued) 4.

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)
revenue, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities (continued)

2017 2016
=F-t5F —F-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Liabilities a&
Reportable segment liabilities AERsHzEfE 668,137 573,643
Elimination of inter-segment 2B FE A FRIE 2 K 8
payables (64,863) (36,764)
603,274 536,879
Amount due to a joint venture EAeag T 42,976 42,976
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBBERE 338 21
Unallocated head office and corporate KXo B 2B A TR
liabilities tHEEE 9,026 6,044
Consolidated total liabilities FoRe N =L 655,614 585,920
(c) Geographical information () HEER

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the reportable segment’s
revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group'’s
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land,
intangible assets, interest in a joint venture and
other non-current assets (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and other non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of
intangible assets and goodwill, the location of the
operation to which they are allocated, in the case of
interest in a joint venture, the location of operations.

TREI BB LEERBRE)
A2 HHIEFZBA S K
(NAREHMEE - BERERE -
HE+i  BPEE  |SELE
BERkEMFERBEE ([EEF
RBEE]) - BEFHNEHET
RIERBREMIEWER 2 BF
MEE - W% - BEIRE A
EX R AEMERBEENTE
wERZEAMRELME - BEE
ENBENFBiEIREER
DTHRINEEHRHEMNE - SED
EEDNFEBHERREEE D
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

4. Segment Reporting (continued) 4. ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ%(ﬁ;ﬁ)
(c) Geographical information (continued) (c) HEERGE)
2017 2016
“g-tF ZE-RF
Hong Kong Hong Kong
and  Mainland and  Mainland
Macau China Total Macau China Total

BERAM  FEAR At BERERM  PEAE At
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 — HKS'000  HKS'000
BYTr  BRTr  BRTr  ERTn ERTn ERTx

Revenue from external HAREZBA

customers 716,110 4,095,846 4,811,956 725,524 3,978,219 4,703,743
Specified non-current EEFRBEE
assets 123,840 573,227 697,067 104,214 622,918 727,132
(d) Information about major customers (d) BEREEEFZEH
During the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016, BE-Z—tHFR-ZF—-ARERX
there was no single external customer that B=1THLEE AEEEHE
contributed 10% or more of the Group's total SHEEENRIAREBEIEF
revenue from external customers. BWANBEDZTHNE-—FF -
5. Revenue 5. A
The Company is an investment holding company and the AARA—BREZRAR  HFEH
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out BARINFEEEKFINRE20EESE
on pages 205 to 207. 2078 °
Revenue represents the amounts receivable for the goods BARKREEEERBRPETHIE
sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts, B BRI BESNEMERENIE
value added tax and other related taxes to external MWW » UREHEMEERA - &
customers as well as service and rental income. The amount BEZEAZWAHBENT ¢

of each significant category of revenue is set out below:

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RE

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BEF T

Sales of goods HEER 4,811,956 4,703,743
Service and rental income RIS MBS WA 2,456 4,269
4,814,412 4,708,012
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 HE=Z

—tFRAZTHLFE

6. Other Income 6. Hftlt A
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sales of scrapped materials HERR 497 598
Income from food supply reservation EmEEAERA 8,009 3,305
Income from insurance compensation RESREE A 7,334 -
Net losses on disposal of property, HENE BERREFEER
plant and equipment (1,243) (834)
Interest income FE WA 13,810 14,432
Net exchange losses EHFER (2,352) (1,874)
Net realised and unrealised gains on PTHEEMIACZEEER
derivative financial instruments (note) R FWE (EE) 137 6,288
Net gain on liquidation of a subsidiary ML BB 2 F R ER 138 -
Others Hith 846 3,182
27,176 25,097
Note: The Group entered into various foreign exchange forward Fiat: ANEBREFERITLTETIHNERE

contracts to manage its foreign currency risk exposures

during the year.

B - LEEREHNEERER -

7. Finance Costs 7. RERAE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BT
Interest on bank loans RITERNFE 48 2,802
The Group's effective borrowing interest rate was BE-ZE-—AEANA=ZtHLEELRE

approximately 1.71% per annum for the year ended 30

June 2016.

IE’J;I@-‘%EE% 221.71% °
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

8. Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

8. BRTAIEF

BRBADEFISHIER (Gt A) TH&RIE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXKN(BREESHNE
emoluments — note 10) —KtaE10)
- Salaries, wages and other benefits —I¥ - HEekER 307,454 288,746
— Share-based payment expenses (note 25) — RIEXZ{TE A (H1325) 2,139 1,550
— Contribution to defined contribution — ERRHICGR NG B2
retirement plans 23,717 23,228
333,310 313,524
Auditors’ remuneration ZER e
— Audit services — R 1,701 1,710
— Tax and other services - BB REMERS 593 172
2,294 1,882
Depreciation of property, plant and WE -  BERREBINE
equipment 56,223 63,941
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE 1 i o 2,808 2,890
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEHE 4,564 2,007
Net exchange losses BN FEE 2,352 1,874
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) ESEWREZREER
for trade receivables ®R(E#E) 407 (14)
Operating lease rental of properties REHEMENEESER 3,280 3,804
Cost of inventories (note 18(b)) FERRA (KL 18(b)) 3,791,268 3,781,724
Carrying value of property, plant and HEWX - BERRKREB
equipment disposed BREE 1,619 969
Less: Net proceeds from disposal of W HEME - BERRE
property, plant and equipment P8 RIEFEER (376) (135)
Net losses on disposal of property, HEWE  BERSEE
plant and equipment FEE 1,243 834
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

8.

Profit Before Taxation (continued)

The Group participates in pension schemes organised by
the PRC government whereby the Group is required to pay
annual contributions at rates ranging from 12% to 20%
(2016: 12% to 20%) of the standard wages determined by
the relevant authorities in the PRC during the year ended 30
June 2017.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and an
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme and ORSO scheme are
defined contribution retirement schemes administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2016: HK$30,000). Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 10% and 5% of the employees’ relevant
income respectively. Contributions to the schemes vest
immediately. Save for the above schemes, the Group has
no other material obligation for payment of retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

8.

BR$t B 2 A )

AEESEBERBRFASNEKS
2Bt REEARBEZZE—1LEAX
B=+HALFEERERTEEEKEMN
EEEEIERBEE > R12%E20%
(ZB—RE 1 12%F20%) L FIEH
FEEKRESMHK -

AEETIRIEE B CGREME QB SRAE)D
M CH R RETEMR B BIREBEE R (E
BB AT EAZEER LA
MABESE([RESFTE ) MBER
REtEl - BESTEA - EREHRKE
KEFE > HBILZEEATE - RIE
BESE AEEREESBERZ
STEMEHREERNEE BB ASY 2 H
F o MBEBWA LRAEE AEE30,000
JT(ZF—xF : B¥30,0005T) ° 1R
BBERAKTE  ~XEEREES
BERZTEELEEERNEERTERA
10% F5% Z 3Kk o @5 B1E H #9 3K
BENEEB o Br ElEt &N 0 NEJER
B B £ A FR LAY E A B KGR IR 58 R
TREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

9. Taxation

9. HIE

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) MNEcBEERZHMES:
loss represents:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ZREFHIE - FBFEHR
Provision for the year REERE 2,324 2,688
(Over)/under-provision in respect of FEEZ(BHE) /T2
prior years B (12) 304
2,312 2,992
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong RERIE - FHE I
Provision for the year NEERE 43,980 61,694
Over-provision in respect of prior years {EFE 2 BEERE (572) (270)
43,408 61,424
Deferred tax (note 22) EEBE(fE22)
Origination and reversal of temporary ~ ERM4EZENEER OE
__ differences 2% 000 (37).
46,016 64,379
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

9. Taxation (continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies within
the Group operating in Hong Kong during the year.

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income
tax charge on the estimated taxable profits of
certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
and Macau, calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective regions.

All entities engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products in Mainland China are
exempted from PRC corporate income tax (“CIT").
As a result, the profits from flour mill operations
are exempted from CIT for the years ended 30 June
2017 and 2016.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to CIT tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%).

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on any dividends distributable
by its subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

(a)

REEBRERZBEAR  (B)

EEBEENEB QAR ZEET
BEHBEDREF RMGTERE
AR E16.5% (ZF—RFE :
16.5% )51

BB LN IR IS A i B A BE AR
PIAE& 28 TH B2 AR fh5HE
AR RZER 2R EE
HYBIESH o

FBEETBEAREELRERDM
T ¥R TEEERME
B(TEEMEHR ] - Bt - R=
E-tFRZZ-AFARA=T
F b 5 2 AR & H D R P RN o2 )3
NAEHRRHEAE ZEEMRE
B e

RAPEARELEE 2 HMHE A
7 FRALEMBHRHRER25%
(ZZ—REF 1 25%) ¢

RIEFETERSRE - @i
BEREREETIRFLERPEK
BERM 2 HERENREBK
10%FEHH - ERAKEEE_-F
ENE-A—BHREK BEH
R-ZEZLtF+-A=+—H%
FIEE BRI o i i B A FEEE )
HREEMBREEEZRESR
HEEER IR EENTEM
HeoeAEBHNBERLEEESY -
Hit > REEBRZSERPEK
BERMYNMBATMR-ZEZNE
—B—BRELZEIMDIKZ
BEHRFEHF o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

9. Taxation (continued)

(b)

9. HIEw

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) HZEBERTPRBRBAEFERE
profit at applicable tax rates: ST HEERNOT ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$°000
B FT BEF T
Profit before taxation BRELATER 319,067 266,392
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  1RiE AN E it TSR =
calculated at the rates applicable to FERBARRN AR
profits in the tax jurisdictions I8
concerned 82,896 63,017
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses — Fif& E AR HIBAIB X 2
e 3,218 2,817
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue HEEBHUANTRIESE (834) (675)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KT LN BEE >
g e 2 1,825 4,917
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRRUBIFEEARATU
not previously recognised BRBEER2BK
=% (6,335) (5,503)
Effect of tax concessions BHEERzTE (44,203) (22,411)
Tax effect of share of loss of a joint EBiEeEhERHE
venture Bk = 1
(Over)/under-provision in respect of AFEE2(BHE),/
prior years TREE (584) 34
Withholding tax on dividend, royalty and FREIE A 2 & A R E U
entrusted loan interests received and FEWRRE - 555N
receivable from PRC subsidiaries AEB A BERFEH
FENH 9,314 22,504
Others Hib 719 (322)
Actual tax expenses ERBIEL W 46,016 64,379
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5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

9. Taxation (continued) 0. ﬁ,IE (#&)
(c) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (0) EHREHMERRERPNARERIE
financial position represents: (A
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax REEEBREHEE
for the year 2,324 2,688
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax FFEZBENESHERE
provision relating to prior years “EeR 1,362 634
3,686 3,322
Provision for profits tax outside BB IERE
Hong Kong 15,405 12,168
Tax payables FEAFLRR 19,091 15,490
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’

10. EERSRITHAEM

Emoluments &
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EM&
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEEB (D TMEMH ) E383(1)1F
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BFAAB(WEEZEEFRER )R
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BIYE2MIBE2ESMESOT :
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
Basic Estimated
salaries/ money value
Directors' Retirement of other
fees Bonuses schemes henefits
(Note (v)) (Note (vi))  contributions Sub-total (Note (viii)) 2017
g8/ R RN
Ezng 4 B it REME
() (et () HE [:% gt (i wii)) “E-tf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8R B8R BETR BETr B8R BETr
Executive director YTES
LEUNG Joseph 278 3483 1,600 18 5,061 997 6,058
Non-executive directors FnES
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (i) BRE ) - - = - - i,
TANG Hong Cheong (Note ()&(i) 358 ()R i) - - = - - -
WHANG Sun Tze ELE 220 - - 220 - 220
TAN Lim Heng (Note (ii) A& (i) 20 - - 220 - 220
TSANG Cho Tai (Note (b)) &R (Hinb) 280 - - 280 - 280
Independent non-executive  BUFHTES
directors
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony EHE 320 - - 320 - 320
AU Chee Ming BRH 20 - - 270 - 20
HUANG Lester Garson, J.P. BEM ATET 300 - - 300 - 300
Year ended 30 June 2017 BlL-E-tE
AR=THLEE 5,053 1,600 18 6,671 997 7,668
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 10. EE R 5 & {TFH A S B

Emoluments (continueq) %(,,é,g)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=EBE£(E)
Basic Estimated
salaries/ money value
Directors’ Retirement of other
fees Bonuses schemes benefits
(Note (v)) (Note (vi))  contributions Sub-total (Note (viif)) 2016
&/ AtERH
£k AN B it fER
(i) (st ) HEI:5 Nt (BEN) ZE-RE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Executive director by
LEUNG Joseph 2% 3,183 700 18 3,901 1,068 4,969

Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
KWEK Leng Hai (Note ())  S%i8(H:#1) - - - - - -

WHANG Sun Tze Cn 20 - - 220 - 20
TAN Lim Heng (Note (iii) ~ BRA&(#izZii) 220 - - 220 - 220
TSANG Cho Tai (Note (i)a))  SREF(Hiv)s) 93 - - 9 - 93

Independent non-executive BiIkHTES

directors
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERE 320 - - 320 - 320
AU Chee Ming ERS 270 - - 270 - 270
HUANG Lester Garson, J.P.  EBRf AT4t 300 - - 300 - 300

Yearended 30 June 2016 Bt —E-~E
AR=THLEE 4,606 700

8 5324 1,068 6,392
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’
Em0|uments (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

No directors’ fees be payable to any salaried
directors employed by group companies of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM"), the
Company’s ultimate holding company, for the
years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016.

Mr. Tang Hong Cheong has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 September 2016.

Mr. Tan Lim Heng has ceased to be a Hong Leong
Group staff with effect from 1 March 2015. Mr.
Tan is entitled to directors’ fees for the year ended
30 June 2017 and 2016.

Mr. Tsang Cho Tai has ceased to be a Hong Leong
Group staff with effect from 1 March 2016.

(a) Mr. Tsang is entitled to directors’ fees on
a pro-rata basis from 1 March 2016 to 30
June 2016.

(b) Mr. Tsang is entitled to directors’ fees for

the year ended 30 June 2017.

Basic salaries/directors’ fees - The amounts paid
and payable to non-executive directors were
directors’ fees. The amount paid and payable to
executive director was basic salaries.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year were
performance-related.

There was no arrangement under which a director
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

These represent the estimated money value of
medical insurance, life insurance, employees’
compensation and share options granted to
the director under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as
set out in note 2(q)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, include adjustments to reverse amounts
accrued in previous years where grants of equity
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted are
disclosed under note 25.

10. EERSHRITHAEM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

Directors’ and Senior Executives’ 10.

Emoluments (ontinved)

10.

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2016: one) is a director of the Company whose
emolument is disclosed in note 10(a) above. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other

EERSRITHAEMH
& @)

(b) EBEEWANESR

ESEEHFMAEgALTH B —
Z(ZEBE—RE : —F)IARDT

ZES  HMEE RKEE10(a)F
KE - HNE(ZF—RF:

four (2016: four) individuals are as follows: ME)ALTZBE€T -
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Salaries, housing benefits and e BEEEAR
share-based payments IR #E 2 A 7,550 7,544
Discretionary bonuses B BT AL 1,771 824
Retirement schemes contributions ERETEIHER 72 73
9,393 8,441
The numbers of individuals whose emolument falls MEeBTHEBERAZAZRNT :
within the following bands are:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
HKS$ /8% T A AE
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 3 3
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
4 4
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

11. Dividends

1. KR

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (a) FARAESEAQ2TIRERRE(H
of the Company (excluding the amount BRENFAEERITHRAER
paid to shares held by the Group under the ROZBEFRBZETES
ESOP reserve) attributable to the year ZREOHWEEE)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend declared and paid of FEHIREERERCHER
HK$0.12 (2016: HK$0.10) per @R E0.125T
ordinary share (ZB—RF
B#0.107T) 28,382 23,836
Final dividend proposed after the end of HIREEIRE 2 REARE
the reporting period of HK$0.23 BREBERKRBY0.23T
(2016: HK$0.18) per ordinary share (ZB—REF:
B#0.187T) 54,324 42,769
82,706 66,605

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (b)
of the Company (excluding the amount
paid to shares held by the Group under the

RmERL B REIRE 2 RBR
ERBERL B RERLER
h—HAE-

FREHKECE NS HA— BB
BRFEERNARARRKRE
(HIRENFAEBRITR

ESOP reserve) attributable to the previous AERGABELSRGEET
financial year, approved and paid during BEEZRAHESEE)
the year
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous &A1 — B8 B FEEH
financial year, approved and paid REFSHRERE
during the year, of HK$0.18 BREBERBY0.18T
(2016: HK$0.13) per ordinary share (ZEB—RF:
BHE0.137T) 42,607 30,987
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

12. Earnings per Share 12. BIREF

(@) Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$273,051,000 (2016:
HK$202,013,000) and the weighted average
number of 236,841,000 (2016: 238,304,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as

BREAXRF

BEREXAERNDREALQTR
RE(EAB® 273,051,000

T (ZF - XN F

B

202,013,000 t) RRAKREE
AERTEERZMEFHH
236,841,000 (ZEE—RFE :

follows: 238,304,000) REBERETE o
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RE
‘000 ‘000
FR Fi
Issued ordinary shares at beginning FHEBITEBER
of year 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares purchased in FEERBEB2ZBRHY
prior years (note 23(a)) S (HfEE23(a)) (5,750) (4,994)
Effect of shares purchased in AREEWE 2 Z@BRD
current year (note 23(a)) HE(fat23(a) (763) (56)
Weighted average number of ordinary SR BERINAEFHH
shares at end of year 236,841 238,304
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5 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

12. Earnings per Share (ontinued) 12. SREB R )
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SBRESEF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based BREEEAMDREBEAQATRRE
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders FE {45 5% R 78 ¥ 273,051,000 T
of the Company of HK$273,051,000 (2016: (ZZE— "% : #B%202,013,000
HK$202,013,000) and the weighted average T)REBEBROMELSRKRE
number of ordinary shares of 242,798,000 (2016: 242,798,000 ( = & — X &F
239,940,000) after adjusting the effect of deemed 239,940,000) R E M BRFZERE
issue of shares under the Company’s share option ARAB 2 BHORBETERTE

schemes, calculated as follows: BRBONSEELARSTE -

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

‘000 ‘000

Fre Fhg

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FREBERINEFHE

shares at end of year 236,841 238,304
Effect of deemed issue of shares under RFEHEREARA T ZBRH

the Company’s share option schemes RS EIZITEBER

(note 25) IRAD S8 (et 25) 5,957 1,636

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FRZER (8 nkE
shares (diluted) at end of year FE9E 242,798 239,940
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. Y13  BERRE

Leasehold Plant,

buildingsin  Leasehold equipment,

Hong Kong buildings furniture

and leasehold outside Construction  and motor
improvements ~ Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total

BE -

EBEE BRI REGR
BERER HERT ERIR RAE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BETT BEFT BB

Cost; A

At 1 July 2015 RZE-HFE+A-H 68,109 900,876 14,746 884,345 1,868,076
Exchange adjustments E 7R - (41,623) (559) (50,576) (92,758)
Additions £ - 7,443 5,308 9,036 21,787
Transfer between categories PEHER - 1317 (16,513) 15,196 -
Disposals HE - (3) - (4,970) (4,973)
At 30 June 2016 RZE-REXB=TH 68,109 868,010 2,982 853,031 1,792,132
At 1 July 2016 RIZE-~EtA-H 68,109 868,010 2,982 853,031 1,792,132
Exchange adjustments ErHA% = (8,312) (27) (10,100) (18,439)
Additions i 505 640 26,877 14,001 42,023
Transfer between categories DEEER - 293 (1,162) 869 -
Disposals e - (124) - (5,209) (5,333)
At 30 June 2017 WZE-tERA=TH 68,614 860,507 28,670 852,592 1,810,383
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5 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment

13. W% - BMERREB =

(continued)
Leasehold Plant,
buildings in Leasehold equipment,
Hong Kong buildings furniture
and leasehold outside Construction  and motor
improvements  Hong Kong in progress vehicles Total
BE-
EAHE AN RAEHA
BEREE HERT EEIR RAE &3
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT BETR BETT BB
Accumulated depreciation: ZHFE
At 1 July 2015 RZE-HFE+A-H 24,316 432,219 - 580,152 1,036,687
Exchange adjustments ERAZ - (31,646) - (31,128) (62,774)
Charge for the year REERE 1,430 26,414 - 36,097 63,941
Written back on disposals HEZED - (2) - (4,002) (4,004)
At 30 June 2016 RZIE-REXB=1AH 25,746 426,985 - 581,119 1,033,850
At 1 July 2016 RZE-REtA-H 25,746 426,985 - 581,119 1,033,850
Exchange adjustments ERAR - (6,398) - (6,074) (12,472)
Charge for the year TEEHE 2,498 24,320 - 29,405 56,223
Written back on disposals HERRMD - (112) - (3,602) (3,714)
At 30 June 2017 RZE—+EXA=TH 28,244 444,795 - 600,848 1,073,887
Impairment loss: REESE:
At 1 July 2016 and R=E-~EtA-BR
30 June 2017 “E—+ERA=1H 33,112 142,082 - - 175,194
Net book value: BREFE:
At 30 June 2017 RZE-+t&xA=1H 7,258 273,630 28,670 251,744 561,302
At 30 June 2016 RZE-REXA=TAH 9,251 298,943 2,982 271,912 583,088

At 30 June 2017, the net book value of property, plant
and equipment held under finance leases amounted to
HK$488,000 (2016: HK$756,000).

R=ZZE—+tEXNAB=+H "  U@ER
EEENYE BERIXEEEDFE
B ABMA88,000 L (ZF —RF | B
756,0007T) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

14. Leasehold Land 14. HE T it

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At beginning of year F4 80,827 88,598
Exchange adjustments B 5 A2 (951) (4,881)
Amortisation iy (2,808) (2,890)
At end of year = 77,068 80,827

Current portion (included in trade and ENEAER M (St AB S R EAM
other receivables — note 19) FEUWERTR — BfaF19) (2,808) (2,890)
Non-current portion JEENHERER 1 74,260 77,937
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

15. Intangible Assets

15. BILEE

Goodwill Trademarks ERP Total
EER
e g HEEYD &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T EBEF T BT T
Cost: R :
At 1 July 2015 R-ZE—81F
+tA—8 14,714 39,970 - 54,684
Additions 240 - - 22,529 22,529
At 30 June 2016 RZE—RE
ANBA=+H 14,714 39,970 22,529 77,213
At 1 July 2016 R-E—REF
+tA—8 14,714 39,970 22,529 77.213
Additions byl - - 463 463
At 30 June 2017 RIZE—+F
AA=t+H 14,714 39,970 22,992 77,676
Accumulated amortisation: 25t#iss :
At 1 July 2015 N—B—FE
+A—H - 39,771 - 39,771
Charge for the year REEEE - 141 1,866 2,007
At 30 June 2016 RIE—REF
~A=1+H - 39,912 1,866 41,778
At 1 July 2016 NoB—RE
+A—H = 39,912 1,866 41,778
Charge for the year REEHE - 58 4,506 4,564
At 30 June 2017 RIE—+tHF
NA=1H - 39,970 6,372 46,342
Impairment loss: FEEE
At 1 July 2016 and RIZE—RETF
30 June 2017 tA—HK
—E—tF
NA=+8 12,539 = = 12,539
Net book value: BREFE -
At 30 June 2017 NZZE—+F
~NA=+H8 2,175 = 16,620 18,795
At 30 June 2016 RZE—RE
ANA=1H 2,175 58 20,663 22,896
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

15.

16.

Intang ible Assets (continued)

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. The key assumption of the cash flow projections
are the estimated weighted average growth rate and
the discount rate used. Cash flows beyond the three-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3% (2016: 3%) which does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted
using a pre-tax discount rate of 16.6% (2016: 16.4%)
which reflects specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

The results of the tests undertaken as at 30 June 2017 and
30 June 2016 indicated no impairment loss was necessary.

Interest in a Joint Venture

15. BEEE @)

AEECHHERACBREREEAR
TZITHERA o

BEHEC2REELBENZREE
A

BECREOSERFERMADI - HER
SELEENNITERSERRIEERE
Bt - ZBEFACESREEAR
RREEEMEN=FEIHBEENE -
HrAMEERRAETMEFHER
ZRIFRER - BB =FHNRERERN
FANBETMEFEIBREIR(ZF
—AREF 3%)TRBBEESEEEMNE
EERNRPFLIERE -BEREF
ABRBRATITIEER16.6% (=T —NE
16.4%) TR » WM EBESEES
IS E RS o

RZB—tERA=ZTHR=-Z—RE
NRAZTHETZARERBERERNE
HIRER 18 -

16. SELEER

2017 2016

—B—+iE —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT B F T

Share of net assets BFEE 42,710 42,710
Amount due to a joint venture EEELERE (42,976) (42,976)

The amount due to a joint venture is interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

BNSELEXREARE BIEARE
BERENEHEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

16. Interest in a Joint Venture 16. EETERER @)

(continued)

Details of the joint venture, which is accounted for using AREEUERNGEMBRRARNS

the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, ERRNARFIIMT
are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
Name of company operation holding indirectly Principal activities
AR ATE A i B BREREZEFERESE FEEK
Evergreen Oils & Fats Limited* Cayman Islands/
(“Evergreen”) Hong Kong 50 Dormant*
RERBERAG(TRED HEHS & (RN
* Company not audited by KPMG e ZEATFAEEHESMBLEME
%
# On 30 September 2011, the Group and the joint venture # R-ZZE——FNA=+H ~EEH
partner entered into a mutual agreement to terminate the EELEBHEITRZERLEE W
Joint Venture Agreement effective 1 April 2012. Evergreen #FOUA—E-——_FHA—BEN
has become dormant since the termination of the Joint B-Z—0fF RERMERLACS
Venture Agreement and has started liquidation process LRI R T IBERERF -
since 2015.
Information of the joint venture that is not individually AR EREECENIBERNT :
material:
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Carrying amount of individually immaterial {ERBIFRE A S %R
joint venture in the consolidated financial ~ R4R& MR KRREE
statements 42,710 42,710
Amounts of the Group's share of rEERGLEEDE
the joint venture’s: &8
Loss from operations KEEE - (6)
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17. Available-for-sale Financial 17. At ELREE
Assets
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Listed equity securities, at market value FTHEHETE
_ZinHongKong BB - 5
Club membership, at cost 2 (RHEA) 342 342
Impairment loss RIEEE (165) (165)
e [ . 177
185 182
" A
18. Inventories 18. &
(a) Inventories in consolidated statement of () REEUBEMRRARZFE
financial position comprise: g
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
Raw materials [ 449,992 338,784
Work in progress F M 29,347 44,477
Finished goods SR 145,813 131,313
Inventories in transit TRER 662 710
Packing materials BFER 23,086 27,386
Spare parts B = 305
648,900 542,975
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 #HZE=

Z—tFXREZTHLEEE

18. Inventories (continued)

18. FEw)

(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) RHEGEZXRERAZIHZ
recognised as an expense and included in FESHEIWHOT :
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —EB-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFEZEREE 3,780,251 3,775,476
Write-down of inventories FERE 11,017 6,248
3,791,268 3,781,724
For the year ended 30 June 2017, part of the Eﬁ:—q +tERA=THLE

write-down of inventories was caused by flooding
and was compensated by income from insurance

compensation (note 6).

19. Trade and Other Receivables

B BAEE

SRERKKREE

iti‘“EEﬁFﬁE*f“Hﬁllﬁ BREE

(Mi&E6) °

L 1t 8 U B K

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
Trade receivables B S EWEIE 337,137 319,605
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RIBERERE (KL 19(b))
(note 19(b)) (771) (471)
336,366 319,134
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWERR - RE R
prepayments A FE 52,892 59,018
Current portion of leasehold land &L — BEIERG
(note 14) (BaE14) 2,808 2,890
Derivative financial instruments: PTESRMIA:
— Foreign exchange forward contracts —NEIREREE = 1,756
392,066 382,798

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

FBEEZRAEMEBEWRRKIIERE—F

A EREDHBZE
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

19. Trade and Other Receivables

(continued)

(a)

(b)

19. EZ R EMEWERT @)

Aging Analysis (a) FRERDAT
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging E(\‘%E%,Hﬁ,%%ﬁ ’ TE})’;%@E%EI,HEE
analysis of trade receivables (which are included in HBRRREERR ZE S BN
S aN = =]
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice IEZ'EEE—%’:’ M(EFFAEZRH
date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as BRI
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Within 3 months =EAR 322,595 310,381
3 to 6 months =ZXN@EA 12,028 7,046
Over 6 months NEB U E 1,743 1,707
336,366 319,134
Further details on the Group's credit policy are set AEEZFHEEBRE AT
out in note 26(a). 26(a) °
Impairment of trade receivables (b) EZEWRREBEZRE

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly (see note 2(I)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, are as follows:

B RWAHENRESE  —R
EEBRFREBTE - MAE
ERAXCHEIWRDHHER
EERBRT - HERESE
SEHEWRE S WA (R
2(1)()) ©

REEREREREREREAN
BONREREBEZBWOT ¢

2017 2016

ZE—tF —E-RE

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T B F T

At beginning of year F£4 471) (623)
Impairment losses (recognised)/reversed B{EE518 (FER) [E1# (407) 14
Uncollectible amounts written off W EE T AT Uk 21 & &8 94 137
Exchange adjustments [E H A% 13 1
At end of year FR (771) (471)
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

19. Trade and Other Receivables

(continued)

(c)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be

19. EG R EMEWERR @

() ARWREZESEWRE

TR R EmIIRAE
(B 2 15 B B 5 F WK IR Y R

impaired are as follows: DT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Neither past due nor impaired BWEBHSEERE 290,952 291,814
Less than 3 months past due BEDR={EA 38,820 24,452

More than 3 months but less than BHZR=EAELR
12 months past due +={@A 6,594 2,868
336,366 319,134

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.

B B SR E 2 B 5 R R
DRBEZEFARE > BEELHY
IWHEE K 2 FC 8%

BHMEI R E 2 E 5 RYKIE
DR-LEHVEFAR  ZEF
FHEEBEARFNEIARTE - R
BREER EEERA/ZRES
BRI E 2 AE R ERME - ER
FEEZNEBERSHRARD
BWRAETUZHEE - AEEE
B TEFPESYIRENR -

MIE(BE)ARRAA | 2 —LFFH
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20. Cash and Cash Equivalents 20. RERREEHE
2017 2016
ZE—tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BHEF T
Deposits with banks IRITEHFER 611,649 344,462
Cash at bank and on hand RITEARES 211,228 319,373
Cash and cash equivalents in FREMBERREZEER
the consolidated statement of REEHE
financial position 822,877 663,835
Fixed deposit held at bank with original FrFEERIEA=MEANL
maturity over three months HIER AT EHIF X (69,859) (80,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in FERERERZEER
the consolidated cash flow statement HEERE 753,018 583,835

21.

Cash at bank carries interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Deposits with banks include time
deposits which are matured within three months and earn
interest at the respective short term deposit rates, and fixed
deposit with original maturity over three months.

Trade and Other Payables

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis
of trade payables (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21.

RTEFRRES BRTERARTE 2
FHARKRAL - RITEMERDIE
EMERDREMANE  LHE S
> EMERAERBAL - LR = @A
B o

B2 R HEMmEN R

RBEMAR  RERXZAHEHE
NRBZERDIT(EFAEZ RAME
MARF AT :

2017 2016

—EB—tF —E-RE

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BEF T

Within 3 months =@AR 319,964 282,187

3 to 6 months =ZXEA 454 1,244

Trade payables g S ENNIE 320,418 283,431

Deposits received gies 24,474 23,399

Other payables and accruals Hih e R R FESHE 247,661 219,587
Derivative financial instruments: fTESmIA

- Foreign exchange forward contracts — HNEIR ER A 151 234

592,704 526,651

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year.

FBESZREMEMNRKIETE—F
RENRERBEA -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

22.

Deferred Taxation

(i)

22, EAEHIIE

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (a) CERRAELEBEEERERE:
Movement of each component of (i) EFEEHBELEREREHEAF
deferred tax assets and liabilities BB
The components of deferred tax (assets)/ RESUHRRREER
liabilities recognised in the consolidated ZIBEERIE(EE) BE
statement of financial position and the BHERFRZEENT :
movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related
Deferred tax arising from: EEHBEER ! depreciation  Provisions  Tax losses Total
FERHE
BEBRTE B RBER EH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT
At 1 July 2015 RZE-FEtLA—H 2,632 (70) (2,504) 58
Charged/(credited) to REEBHERNG/
consolidated statement of (FFN) (HizE9(a))
profit or loss (note 9(a)) 3,813 (23) (3,827) (37)
At 30 June 2016 RIZ-RF
ANA=1H 6,445 (93) (6,331) 21
At 1 July 2016 RZZE-~EtA-H 6,445 (93) (6,331) 21
Charged/(credited) to REEEERNR/
consolidated statement of (FFN) (Hizt9(a))
profit or loss (note 9(a)) 1,532 24 (1,260) 296
At 30 June 2017 RZZ—tf
AB=TH 1,977 (69) (7,591) 317
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

22. Deferred Taxation (continued) 22, EERIE @)
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities () EERRELEHEEERE

recognised: (continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position:

& : (#)

(i) HEMBEMREEZLHIR

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised RSB AERD
in the consolidated statement of ~ R ZIELEFIE
financial position FEE (21) -
Net deferred tax liabilities REEHERRERE
recognised in the consolidated R ZIELERIE
statement of financial position FAE 338 21
317 21
(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) REREELEHEERE

At 30 June 2017, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group's
subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounted
to HK$298,244,000 (2016: HK$247,977,000).
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised as
at 30 June 2017 and 2016 as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits
will not be distributed by these subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future.

Temporary difference arising in connection with a
joint venture is insignificant.

R=ZZE—tEFEA~A=1+H B
AEBEN AP KRE 2K B R ER
PEANENEREEZEELSBE
298,244,000t (=& — R F : B
#5247,977,0007T) ° AR &)
EHZEHRBQRRNREBER
WERERATRRRZERE A
ARAEZIEDIREF - it
WRRZEBE—tFRZE—RF
NA=ZTHHBRRELEHEESE o

RAECEABNEREERY
FEA -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

22. Deferred Taxation (continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 30 June 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$298,727,000 (2016: HK$324,785,000) available
for offset against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$46,003,000 (2016: HK$38,365,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$252,724,000 (2016:
HK$286,420,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$46,535,000
(2016: HK$49,131,000) that will expire within
five years. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$113,014,000 (2016:
HK$121,317,000) arising from impairment of certain
property, plant and equipment and leasehold lands
provided in prior years. No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of these temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of taxable
profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

22, EAERIE @)

() FRERELEBEEE
R=ZZE—tFXRA=1+H  &&
BB %298,727,000 T(=F&
— N : ##324,785,000 7T )
B AT AR IR R R ER R R R
HREEE - ERRaRiBEEs
BT B % 46,003,000 (=
T — X . B ¥38,365,007T)
MIELERIBEE - IR B
252,724,000 . (ZF — < F
7B %% 286,420,000 7T ) BY AT 3K 30
EiE > RARFEINFITER
Mo UM RBRERRBIELR
BHEE - B/ KRERWHRIEE
BrhAB 46,535,000 (=&
— N B#49,131,0007T) #Y
EEREREFAEE - HMEE
AT LA S PR HA o A S 1A R o

AEBRUBNFERSETWE
BMERZLEBERHEE L MERE
BiE ZEBER-ZE—tHF
RNA=1+H ASKEELEY
113,014,000t (=& —RF : B
#5121,317,000 7T ) B & 05 M =
2o BAAERFEANNTITHERHE
36 7 AT 78 B A9 R 3R A A R BT B
MER . FFUTERZEZERER
EEMIBEERE ©
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23. Share Capital

(a)

Issued share capital

23, [RA&

(a) EBEITRA

2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RE
No. of No. of
shares shares
ROEE R BE
(‘000) HK$'000 ("000) HK$°000
FR BHEFT FR B F T
Ordinary shares, issued BE{ITRTHE
and fully paid: @R
At 1 July and 30 June REtA—BRK
~B=1H 243,354 672,777 243,354 672,777

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the
Company do not have a par value.

RIBEE (A RRBI) 581354% -
AAREBERTBAREE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

23. Share Capltal (continued)

(a)

Issued share capital (continued)

During the year, the Group purchased its own
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for the purpose of satisfying the
exercise of share options granted under the Group’s
share option schemes as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2017:

23. BZA (@)

(a) CERITRA#HE)

REERRECRTERETHR
TENKRSE  AEEZEROIE
BB ARERBBMERSE M
BRAFHENZEROT -

BE-Z—tH&E~A=1+HL

R

No. of Highest Lowest
shares price paid price paid Aggregate
purchased per share pershare price paid

28 28
BARG SBRES BR&E =% S0
Month/year £/ B#H HE EE EE BER
(‘000) HKS$ HKS$ HK$'000
TR BT BT BEFT
September 2016 —E-RENA 338 8.63 8.19 2,883
October 2016 —E-XR¥+A 273 8.71 8.50 2,350
November 2016 —E-RE+-—A8 320 9.00 8.45 2,808
December 2016 —E—-XRE+ZH 155 8.70 8.45 1,330
April 2017 —E—tFmMA 64 10.70 10.66 684
May 2017 —E—tFhHA 33 10.70 10.46 352
June 2017 —E—tF XA 231 11.50 10.70 2,555
1,414 12,962

For the year ended 30 June 2016: BE-Z—-—X~"EXA=1+HL
FE:

No. of Highest Lowest
shares price paid price paid  Aggregate
purchased per share per share price paid

28 =52 L8
BARGD BRE&ES BR&E 28t
Month/year /A6 e BE BE BER
("000) HK$ HK$ HK$'000
FIR BT BT  BETT
March 2016 —E—XRE=H 25 6.10 6.10 153
April 2016 —E-RFEMA 26 6.20 6.20 161
May 2016 —E-XEHAB 168 6.95 6.19 1,121
June 2016 —E—-XEXB 537 7.78 6.90 3,900
756 5,335
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

23. Share Capltal (continued)

(a)

(b)

Issued share capital (continued)

The considerations of the purchased shares for the
year ended 30 June 2017 of HK$12,962,000 (2016:
HK$5,335,000) were charged to ESOP reserve.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

As at 30 June 2017, there were 7,164,000 (2016:
5,750,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by the
Group under the ESOP reserve for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options granted to a
director and eligible employees.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

23. BZA (@)

(a)

(b)

ERITRAE(E)

BE_2-tH#~A=TH
LTtEEBARONERBRB
#12,962,000 7T (2016 : & ¥
5,335,0007T) ¥ 2R HEE TR
D RIBER RHE -

EERZEFEAATERAKEIK
ZRE  YARARTZKE L
AERBROEE-—ZREE-H
RRFZHNGEEMS - IEE
BRERRSER -

R=ZZE—tF~A=1+H " An
REERT—RBREEREGERKET
B D REBRE A AT IR - R
EERITHRABROABESR
REPEFEEEBERT,164,000 8%
(== —7<% :5,750,0008%) °

BEXRERE

AEEEREANEEZARR
RESBREAFELSE BB
7= i N AR 7% I i B2 B vk 4B A
HEE  UREBEBREERALE
SRELMERSRREHRER
RAHMANDEEETREE

AEEEBRERHELRER
s RERE  LERSKRRE
BIERT TREFE2ESEEK
FEHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
RRE2EHREFE  WEEL
BRENSB(CHERERBELS

o
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

23. Share Capital (continved) 23. RA ()
(b) Capital management (continued) (b) EBEXEHE(E)

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing NEBURSERLEREEESR
its equity-debt ratio and cashflow requirements, EREZEEK RN HAEBREK
taking into account of its future financial obligations EEEREREARAEE - R
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group Rt REBREZEHHLERR
defines equity-debt ratio as the ratio of the total EARDBRRELAEREZF
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the BEWLEE - FEXKBRELER
Company to net debt. Net debt comprises total bank FREHERERRERESE
loans and obligations under finance leases less cash ZH o

and cash equivalents.

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BHEF T

Obligations under finance leases R ERERIE 505 782

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B EERIBEERE (822,877) (663,835)

Net liquid funds FRBES (822,372) (663,053)
Total equity attributable to equity AATRREGEER

shareholders of the Company 1,894,789 1,720,151

Equity-debt ratio EREKLE 100:0 100:0
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

24. Reserves

24. #1E

The Company AT
Investment Share
Share revaluation option General  Revenue
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
RE ROEREE
BA  EfifE e -REE  KERE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT  BEFr  BEFr BETr BEFn BEFx
At 1 July 2015 R=B-1fF
tA-H 672,771 (8) 6,472 50,000 294,116 1,023,357
Profit for the year KEERA - - - - 485767 485,767
Changes in fair value of available- ~ FItHELRERE
for-sale financial assets ZATEEED - 2 - - - Q)
Equity settled share-based REREECURMA
transactions ERR5 - - 1,550 - - 1,550
Final dividend paid in respect RAEECH
of prior year AERE - - - - (31,636) (31,636)
Interim dividend paid in respect AEAFECH
of current year hERE - - - - (24,335) (24,335)
At30 June 2016 R-B-rE
AA=TH 672,777 (10) 8,022 50,000 723912 1,454,701
At 1July 2016 RIB-RE
tB—-H 672,771 (10) 8,022 50,000 723,912 1,454,701
Profit for the year REERF - - - - 47432 M7432
Changes in fair value of available- ~ FIftHESRER
for-sale financial assets AT EEZE - 3 - - - 3
Equity settled share-based REGEEZURNA
transactions EHR S - - 2,139 - - 2,139
Final dividend paid in respect PAFEER
of prior year AERE = = - = (43,804)  (43,804)
Interim dividend paid in respect BAEEC(
of current year HERE - - - - (29,202)  (29,202)
At 30 June 2017 RZZ-tF
~B=TH 672,777 (7) 10,161 50,000 1,098,338 1,831,269
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

24. Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises, foreign investment enterprises
in Mainland China are required to transfer at least
10% of their profit after taxation, as determined
under accounting principles generally accepted in
the PRC (“PRC GAAP") to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance of the reserve is equal to
50% of their registered capital.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies in note 2(g).

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve comprises the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options granted to a director and eligible
employees under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the cumulative fair
value of employee services received for the issue of
share options and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in note 2(q)(ii).

24. #EE @

REZMERAR :
() BerfEfE

ERREBEEIERBRLABER

EEREE °

RE(EXEHE) £ E
RENIERELEGEET D
R10%ME(PEARKNES
HERD ST EMBRB R ERBA
EEBBAEE  BEZREN
FERESREEMEARNS0%H
1k

(i) REEMLRE
REEMRFEBREEREREEN
IHEEEHEEZAFEED
M RFREE - LREBEMEE2(9) P
BB BEMEE

TRAERORABELSR
e

(iii)

THRAEBROABEIEREE
RARE—BEBREERET
TERADTRDBES EMER
TFTHRORBEFABAZARQT
SRITRONBENE -

(iv) BROZBERE
RORBEBEEERTROR
BEZETIRBzZRFTLFE
ZRERBEHE 20 AR 2E
SRR MERE o
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B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

24. Reserves (continued)

25.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises: (a) the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
whose functional currencies are different from the
functional currency of the Company; and (b) the
exchange differences on monetary items which form
part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 2(u).

General reserve

The general reserve has been set up by transfer
of revenue reserve according to resolutions of the
Board of directors of the Company.

Revenue reserve

The distributable reserves of the Company at 30

June 2017 amounted to HK$1,098,338,000 (2016:
HK$723,912,000).

Equity settled Share-based
Transactions

Executive Share Option Scheme 2013 (the “ESOS 2013")
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 23 April 2013 and
took effect on 25 April 2013 to, among other, allow grant
of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer of
existing shares by a trust of the ESOS 2013 (the “Trust”)
which was established between the Company and a trustee
of the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

24,

25.

18 )
(v) ERfFE

B i#EEE  BRERINHE
DA (ANEEBRHIRALT
ZUHEER) cMBRERFAEE
ZINEZRE  (b)ERAEEEIH
MBARREFRE-—FH2EY
MHEECELEZME - ZRBRE
MiFE2(u) 8 2 S Et R MR E -

(vi) —mf#EE
—REFEAERQATESSRUA
FEREZWNEFEBEA -

(vii) WEHfEE

KAARZE—ttF XA
SEtHZAU B REERBE
1,098,338,0007t (=& — /< F :
7#B#723,912,0007T) ©

BERnEE ARG A
ERRS

20131THA ER MR BEBREST (2013
BHhREESE DR =_FE—=F0A
“H=ARARTARRAE LERFRI
B MR-ZE-=FNA=-t+EHEBAAE
B HPEEEFRESRIBITRNG
ReEB2013 MR BEE RIS
(M55 ) (ERED A AT EEAZERT
ZEFEAFRL > MEEAAELERZ
ZEMBAR) °
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

25. Equity settled Share-based

Transactions (continued)

As at 1 July 2016, there were share options for 12,500,000
ordinary shares granted under the ESOS 2013, in which
share options for 5,000,000 ordinary shares were granted
to Group Managing Director. No options were exercised,
lapsed or granted during the year.

Options granted under the ESOS 2013 are subject to
achievement of performance-based vesting condition. The
option shall lapse on the date the grantee ceased to be an
employee of the Group or the performance-based condition
is not satisfied. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company and is

25. BERGEE 2 URDA

EWRXZ w

R-ZZBE—-XE+tHA—8  #£E2013
R ABESTE  AXRAREEH
12,500,000k 2 R 7 R B » @A
NREEESH LI 15,000,000
ZRODBBE RERNLEIBET
£ RERETF -

RI52013R 1D RIBRET BT IR B 2 7208
EzRBRECERNMEKRRIRE
BEREMARE - RODBENERA
FLEAREBET 2 B REER X
BEERAN - SOROIABEB T
BARBARR-REBRIER KL

settled gross in shares.

R BEEE -

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BHZEZAMEHEDT :
follows:
ESOS 2013: 2013 PR RERTE -
Number of Contractual
instruments  Exercisable period life of options
RBEHE ATERD RBESHE
Options granted to a director:
RBEET—8ES
— 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 1,250,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months from 4 years
-RZE—=FX<A=+N\H vesting date upon BRC's
(#E5%1) approval after 30 June 2017
E-ZE—tHFARA=1THE A%
EEaMESHAERN
BEBRENEANRN
(i) 40% — Within 6 months from 5 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2018
EZE-N\FXRA=+HE 56
EESMESHERZDN
FEEBHENEAR
(iii) 20% — Within 6 months from 6 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2019
E-ZE—NFRA=1TH#E 65
EESMESHUERK
BEBREANEARN
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

25. Equity settled Share-based 25. BRERBEZURG A
Transactions (continued) EFE*BEEI (#&)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (a) BWHZHERNEREDOT @ (&)

as follows: (continued)

Number of Contractual
instruments  Exercisable period life of options
RBEHE AUTERRD REESHH
— 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 3,750,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months from 4 years
-RZEBE—=xXA=+N\H vesting date upon BRC'’s
(#E55%2) approval after 30 June 2017
E-E—tFRA=tH#E E:S
EEEMESHAERN
BEEREAREARN

(i) 40% — Within 6 months from 5 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2018
E-ZE-N\FXA=1+AH%E 5
EEEMZESHAERN
BERENEAR

(iii) 20% — Within 6 months from 6 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2019
E-E—NEA~B=+H% 65F

EEEaMZESHAERN
HEHEASEAR
Options granted to eligible
executives:
RBEETEERTHRAER
— 28 June 2013 (Batch 1) 2,400,000 (i) 40% - Within 6 months from 4 years
-RZE—=%X<AZ+N\H vesting date upon BRC's
(#ta%1) approval after 30 June 2017
E-ZE—tFRA=THE 45
EEaMESHERN
BEBERASEAR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months from 5 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2018
E=E-NFEARA=+tH# 5%
ExeMESHERD
BEHEASEAR

(ili) 20% — Within 6 months from 6 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2019
E—ZE-NFERA=THE 65
ExeMESHERD
FBAHENEAR
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

25. Equity settled Share-based 25. REREEZURG A
Transactions (continved) ERRXZ @
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are (a) BWHZHERNEREDOT @ (&)

as follows: (continued)

Number of Contractual
instruments  Exercisable period life of options
RBEHE AUTERRD REESHH
— 28 June 2013 (Batch 2) 7,200,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months from 4 years
-RZEBE—=xXA=+N\H vesting date upon BRC'’s
(#E5%2) approval after 30 June 2017
EZE—tFRA=tH#E E:S
EEEMESHAERN
HEERENEARN

(i) 40% — Within 6 months from 5 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2018
E-ZE-N\FXA=1+AH%E 5
EEEMESHAERN
BEHENEAR

(iii) 20% — Within 6 months from 6 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2019
E-E—NFEA~B=+H% 65F
EEEaMZESHAERN
FEAESERR

— 26 November 2014 900,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months from 4 years
-R=ZZE—-NOE+—A vesting date upon BRC's
—+7H approval after 30 June 2017
E_Z—tHFXRA=THE A%
ExeMESHERD
BEEREREARN

(i) 40% — Within 6 months from 5 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2018
E=ZE-N\FXRA=+HE 5%
ExeMESHERD
FEAEREAR

(ili) 20% — Within 6 months from 6 years
vesting date upon BRC's
approval after 30 June 2019
E-—ZE—NFERA=THE 65
ExeMESHERD
FEBAENEAR

Total share options granted 15,500,000
ROZDBER TR

MIE(ER)BRAR | —E—LFFRH

183



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

25. Equity settled Share-based

Transactions (continued)

25. REREEZ2URNTD A
HERERXS @

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) RORBENHERMET
share options are as follows: PITEELT :
ESOS 2013: 2013 1D R EBREST &) ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
hn#EF5 hnEF g
TEE RBREHE THEE RBEEHKE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT Fi BT Fi
Outstanding at the RED B RE
beginning of the year 171 4.78 12,500 4.76 14,300
Lapsed during the year RER KK - - 4.62 (1,800)
Outstanding at the end ~ RERE K%
of the year I 4.78 12,500 4.78 12,500
Exercisable at the end RERAITE

of the year

The options outstanding at 30 June 2017 under the
ESOS 2013 had weighted average exercise price of
HK$4.78 (2016: HK$4.78) and weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.8 years (2016: 1.8

years).

R-ZE—tEXB=+H &
2013 D PREBREFTEIF > HRIT
FRRAREEMETEITERE
ABEAIST(ZT—XRF B
4787) U R MEFHRERE
HWEBOSFE(ZE—XRF 1.8
F)o
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

25. Equity settled Share-based
Transactions (continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on Black-Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this
model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions of ESOS

25. ZREBREEZURG A
BERERXZ @

() ROBBENIFEMEBR

ERETROIBEBRURY
NAFERSERRTIBEN
DNVERFE CREROZER
DFERRE (A= —EFREE ]
BRMGAHE - RODBENS QD
PREZERNEAE -

RODBEBELFER2013RHR

2013: BRS¢
26 November 2014 20 November 2013 28 June 2013
Grant date BHA ZE-ME+-A-+AE  ZE-ZE+-B=+H  ZE-ZEXAZTNA
Fair value at measurement date HiERZATE HISTER0.883 - HISRER1.083  HKSREET.000- HKSRER1. 739 HKS/EH0.456 - HKS/E 1 060
Share price RE HKS/E%6.75 HKS/5.75 HK S/ 58
Exercise price fikf HK§/%%6.80 HKS 584 62 HK§ 584 62
Expected volatility BERE 26.46% - 27.81% 23.33%-35.04% 27.20% - 35.99%
Option life HEETH 26 years/ - 4.6 years/ & 0.6 year/ - 5.6 years/ 1 year/ - 6 years/
Expected dividend yield ke 3% 31% 35%
Risk-free rate BRRTZ
(based on Exchange Fund Note) (RENEESEE) 0.49% - 1.07% 0.20%-1.25% 0.24%-137%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

KRR BB K EmMEE
(FFETIRIE IR 7 52 48 #E 19 fn 1
FHRGH) ARBEQIFMEH
BB RAFR IRV TRR S B
HARAE - FHRETDREBEBER
EMEE - EXWMAEBRRA
HRAFELTEREATE -
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B RS R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

26. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities. These risks are limited
by the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credits are offered to customers following financial
assessments and established payment records where
applicable. Credit limits are set for all customers
and these are exceeded only with the approval of
senior company officers. Customers considered
to be with credit risk are traded on a cash basis.
General credit terms are payment within 30 to 60
days following the sales took place. Regular review
and follow up actions are carried out on overdue
amounts to minimise the Group’s exposure to
credit risk. Collaterals over properties are obtained
from certain customers. An ageing analysis of the
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated
with these debtors. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk in view of its large
number of customers. The Group does not provide
any guarantee which would expose the Group to
credit risk. Further quantitative disclosures in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in note 19.

26.

MERRERERAFE

AEEEEREEBRTEHYEE R
BEE  MRREBER  AKETE
HEAEMEEFHRERENRESD
MEENRERR - ARERBMUT 2
BEEBRME R R L E @R -

(a)

ERER

AEBNEERBEIERBEES
REAMEWRR - BEERLT
FEHBR  WIFEERLEEE
Bk - EEEEDRETHIST
HHERERE ZE KT &
(WEH)MEE - IERFIEIR
BEEERSE  BEQASHRAE
HEREAFTBRLEEEREE - BHR
AEFEEERAR  AIUREE
AR5 - —REENRHEERER
30Z60HREIH - BTHRER
LEERK  AEEEHRFE
RS SEEILREIREITE o &
SETEHRERRER D MUSRYE
REEEEWRE > WRERHIHE
HEERRBEERNEERR -
AEESRETEFIEYER
He-HREERERF  ~&H
WRBRBRENEESEHER - &
SETERHEEAZEERK
HIER AEBREES R HA
ERERNEERR  HARSE
BT 19/EE — S EL I

& o
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

26. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and financial
resources to ensure that a healthy financial position
is maintained such that cash inflows from operating
activities together with un-drawn committed
banking facilities are sufficient to meet the
requirements for loan repayments, daily operational
needs, capital expenditure, as well as potential
business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

26. EEREERAFRE

(&)

(b) RBEZEE
AEEEZEVERERBE S M
HER  UBRESERNOME
R EREEEEBNSER
% BEREEARBANRITERRE
B RUBMEEEN  HEE
B -BAMAX  URBREBR
BRNEETESTFR -

FEETRRIAMBERE - B
NEFLHAERARZNRER
B IEEHBRRBEIENEE

=5 o

TREINAKEFRTESREE
RBEHRBZREBRSHNEH
A RBSNIHMEDRENE
FRASRE(BEMNANER
R (i F 5 ) EREHPLBAEN
MR RFE 2R BN ARAE
SEEUHRERIRZHE BH

e

H
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

26. Financial Risk Managementand 26. IR EREER A ¥ E

Fair Values (continueq) (#&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEMKE)
2017
8-t

Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted Tyearor  butwithin  but within
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
CLER it —ER —F0E “ENE

REE REREAE WG BIFUR BIFLRA
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BRFr  ERTn  ERTn EETn ERTR

Payables and accruals EGHRETER 568,230 568,230 568,230 - -
Amount due to a joint venture EftaEtEE 42,976 42,976 42,976 - -
Obligations under finance leases HEREER 505 505 250 218 37
611,711 611,711 611,456 218 37
2016

“E-5F
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or but within but within
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
CLERiE R —FUE ZENE

RAE BeREsE gEE  BIENR BRENR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BETT BETT

Payables and accruals EHRIRENER 503,252 503,252 503,252 - -
Amount due to a joint venture EfieetEsE 42976 42976 42,976 - -
Obligations under finance leases HEREEE 782 782 252 252 278

547,010 547,010 546,480 252 278
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For the year ended 30 June 2017

B R R AR B

BHE-Z—tFRAZTHLEE

26. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank deposits.

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest
rate profile of the Group's interest earning
financial assets at the end of the reporting
period:

26. i EAREER AT E

(&)

() R=RER

REENF RE R EERERT

EZ

(i)

2017
It S

Effective
interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount
BERERIZ REE
% HK$000
BETT

FIEH R

TRAFNRREPLBE R
EESESREENAR
B

2016
—E-RE

Effective
interest Carrying
rate p.a. amount
ERFRR REE
% HK$'000
BET T

Fixed rate financial assets: EEHEEE :

Deposits with banks BITERER 2.53 611,649 2.01 344,462
Variable rate financial FEHMBEE:

assets:
Cash at bank BIER 1.29 178,771 1.12 319,373
Total ast 790,420 663,835

MIE(&EE)B
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BZE=ZZ—tHFA=1THLEE

26. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2017, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease of 0 to 117 basis points
(2016: 0 to 75 basis points) in interest rates
for the Group's interest earning financial
assets denominated in various currencies,
mainly Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit after tax
and revenue reserve by approximately
HK$1,761,000 (2016: HK$723,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would
arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at
the end of the reporting period, the impact
on the Group’s profit after tax (and revenue
reserve) is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest income of such a change in
interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as for 2016.

26. EREEERAFE

GIES:N 6P

(ii)

HBETH

RZE—ttFERA=1
B GiEEETESm
EEDZINE(EZEAB
wARBRERL)AE
ZELHATHOZE117
BF(ZE—-—ARF 0%
75HF) EHMRAEE
HHEBTENBERT - &
EBEZBRBEBR RIS
B GIG N, R B
1,761,000t (=& — 7
1 B#723,0007T) ©

BLE 2 BUBE D MR RR
RANBRHERREEE
HAREBBRBRER (M
Wit ) & IR 2 BN R
28 TEAREHNGE
FEERBEHMRAEEFE
HHAFENRRER S
BMITA -FBAKERKRS
MR BBEFHNREN
AEMTAEELEZRERN
EBRREAR  ARERB
BIEFN (MR RERE) 2%
- DYiES L LN
REEZET UM -
DR T — NFHE
Bz B AT -
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5 75 3R R Y =

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

26. Financial Risk Management and 26. I BEMEEE A ¥ E

Fair Values (continued) (#&)

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥@RkK
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily AEBEENERERER » TER
through sales and purchases which give rise to BEREEMEEZEWRIE k&
receivables, payables and cash balances that are NRERREeES  ZZBATD
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency BN RS REKZIT
other than the functional currency of the operations Bes M Dl Hh o S MEEE o SMNER
to which the transactions relate. The currencies BFEFEREPET - ARYE - B
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States RIBPIHE o

dollars (“US$"), Renminbi (“RMB"), Hong Kong
dollars (“"HK$"”) and Macau Pataca ("MOP").

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) RZZIERE

The following table details the Group's TRAAEBRIBEPL
exposure at the end of the reporting period H LAERE A Bl TheE & ¥ L
to currency risk arising from recognised assets HNEBTENCHRREE
or liabilities denominated in a currency other HEEEZ 2 INERK
than the functional currency of the entity to EHEFHD - ARESE
which they relate. Differences resulting from MEBZMBBRRELSE
the translation of the financial statements Bz 25 &8 LU KREAM
of foreign operations into the Group's BRAREEMEEZEER
presentation currency and exposure arising Azt =5 WA
from inter-company balances which are BIEER o

considered to be in the nature of interest in
subsidiaries are excluded.

Exposure to foreign currencies (Expressed in original currency)
RENERR(URERTR)
017 2016
t3-tf e
HKS'000  RMB'000  USS'000  MOP'000  HKS'000  AMBOO0  US§'000  MOPOO0
BE7r \REFn AiTi APRETn EEFr AREFT Enin BETn

Trade and other receivables EEREMENES - - 136 - - - 13 -
Cash and cash equivelents BeRBLEE 659 73485 20,997 - 506 1845 21 -
Trade and other payables EERERERED - - (188) - (186) - (1786 -
Amounts due fromfto) group companies B/ (B EBARRE 11976 - - N7 83813 - - 20315
Overall net exposure BEEREE 78635 73485 19288 21167 84133 1,845 (144) 20315
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

26. Financial Risk Management and 26. I BEMEEE A ¥ E

Fair Values (continued) (#&)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d E¥@ERE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SBESIT

The following table indicates the TREHEHEREERIRK
instantaneous changes in the Group’s profit LHARMBERNER 2
after tax (and revenue reserve) that would HNEEPRE 2= > JARZ H HRV R
arise if foreign exchange rates to which RESHAREBKRKER
the Group has significant exposure at the F (RN 2 4 ) 2 BB 2
end of the reporting period had changed at By o R TR H AR b
that date, assuming all other risk variables HURIFTE o

remained constant.

2017 2016

ZB-t% “E-RE
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
(Decrease)/  increase in  (Decrease)/ increase in
increase  profit after increase  profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange revenue exchange revenue
rates reserve rates reserve

HNEER  FREEER MEEZR  BREEER
(T®)/ RUERHE (), REERE

A (HD) /% A CED)/Em

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

BYEFT BEFT

RMB AR (3.44) (2:433) (2.25) (41)

HK$ B 3.44 236 2.25 51
Us$ e (0.62) (739) 2.26 (144)
MOP BP9 3.44 531 2.25 2
Results of the analysis as presented in the EREBRZHOMERBET
above table represent an aggregation of the AEERZERUZ B
instantaneous effects on each of the Group EMTE oBRRERENSR
entities’ profit or loss after tax and revenue ERERBRGEE RS
reserve measured in the respective functional HABRBTZERBRES
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars B DUE 23R 2 A FARN B

at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the 730

reporting period for presentation purposes.
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

26. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2016.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from investments in equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. As the carrying
amount of such investments is insignificant
compared to the total assets of the Group,
management considers the exposure to equity price
risk to be insignificant.

Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

26. EREEERAFE

(&)
(d) E¥ERERE)
(i) SBREZHT ()

BRBE SRR EES
DEAREHHELEE
REEHRBBERSE
EEEY R A
SWMIA - DATRLIE=
T-AFERARZEEE
5

(e) KREEHREMR

FEEZISBRUHEHESH
BECRERSZRENRESD
FE HANZERENVKREEM
HAEENEERELTEX
EEERAAKREAZINREE
KRS FREE o

(f) 2¥E

() HURXAFEIRZZHBEE
REfE\E

TREIREE B HIR
ER U ENEL A AR -
B EHRHEHLE
SAEREERMIAZAY
BEEIEA=ZELAFEE
BB - BERMET AR
BABBNITEEMERE
EMEUTRBIEE :

- BE-#&RMtE:E
55 — AR BIE A
BE(NFEEH
ERHREERE
EEEME LR
KARBE)E
HAFE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

26. Financial Risk Managementand 26. IR EREER A ¥ E

Fair Values (continued) (#&)
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) (f) 2AFEGE)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) UAFEIEZ2MEE

at fair value (continued) REE(E)
= Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured = FE_HAIEE: &
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable BE Rl AE
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and EBAREEE—
not using significant unobservable B BIELER B R
inputs. Unobservable inputs are HE)TENATF
inputs for which market data are not B BFrsREA
available. BATHUEHERHA
Hig - TAEER
A BB /AR EES
TS IE N A

% o
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured - E=RAMEE : fF
using significant unobservable inputs. AEARTAHER
ABBTENAT

1B o

2017 2016
TE-tE 235

Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total  level!  level2  Level3 Total
$-08 %R E=EH B8 208 Eo4R E=HE 0 4%
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BETr  BETn BETn BETL B BEFr BEFL BEFA

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EE#ATEEHE

Assets gE
Avalable-for-sale financial assets TREESREE 185 - - 185 18 - - 18)
Derivative financial instruments: fiE4HIE:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts EEHAR - - - - - 1T - T
185 - - 185 182 1,756 - 1938
Liabilities L
Derivative financial instruments: fESRIE:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts— -NEEEAR - 151 - 151 - 24 - 24
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

26. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2017 and
2016, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and input used in
Level 2 fair value measurement

The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts is determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative participants
supported by observable inputs including
spot and forward exchange rates.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

Apart from non-trade balances with
subsidiaries, all other significant financial
assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values
as at 30 June 2017 and 2016. The carrying
amounts of non-trade balances with a
joint venture approximate the fair values
due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these financial assets and liabilities. It is not
meaningful to disclose the fair value of non-
trade balances with subsidiaries because
there is no fixed term of repayment.

26. EREEERAFE

(&)

(f) 2FEGE#HE)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HURFEIRZEBEE
REMEE)

BE-Z—tH&ERK=-ZF
—R"EXRB=ZTBHBLHE
B E—#RBIEE &5
ZEREERE  hREE
AREBHE=RG - K&
EERRANRRAIEBELE
CRERLBABIAATE
WAIET o

HRARE=—REI A FEE
a1 B #9154 18 # 1 R B A
k¢4

SINEEMERN D FEE
DR HEMMESRE
LT 87 52 o A BB P 2
HREREE - HPEHE
AR RAER -

FURFEESRYE M
BERAMEZLFEE

BREMBAR ZFEZE
BN RZB—tHFERZ
E-R"ERNA=Z+H
BEHEBEREREERE
BENRAEESRE A FEL
BEAEZE -BHREBEE
BEERBBEREHEE
HEER  HESERE
2B REER
DFERE - BREHE
REZFEZ E R EE
EERY  BMWEHEQF
BITESE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 3R R Y &

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

27. Capital Commitments 27. EXREE
(a)  The Group had the following capital commitments (a) AEENRBEHLABUTER
outstanding at the end of the reporting period not FIERTE B HRRPIEHBE

provided for in the financial statements:

2017 2016

=F-t%F —F-RE

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Capital expenditure authorised and ERETEITNZ
contracted for BEREX 10,157 24,179
Capital expenditure authorised but EREERTNOZ

not contracted for BERBEX 141,827 5,921
(b) At 30 June 2017, the Group had several non- (b) H=-Z—tFXA=+H &K
cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with B HMERE B8R ABUE
its suppliers with an amount of HK$434,322,000 HEREMBIERBEIE  SEABY
(2016: HK$442,138,000). 434,322,000t (=F—RF : B

#442,138,0007T) °
28. Related Party Transactions 28. FRAEANLTZRZ
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEBAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel, FTEEBASZHFH  BEXAM
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors FRARESRETHERESHW
and certain of the highest paid employees is BERGEMBHRERMF10HE
disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial B o HMRECHATHIN
statements. Total remuneration is included in “staff IR (RKEE8) ©

costs” (note 8).
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

28. Related Party Transactions

(continued)

(b)

(c)

28. EREALTZRZ @)

Management fees (b) EBEE
Related party Nature of transactions 2017 2016
BT XEME —B—tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEFT BEFT
GOMC/GGMC Management fee expenses (Note)
ERE X (HaT) 10,177 8,592
Note: BifEt -
A master service agreement was entered into by the R-ZZ—WNFLtA=H  ~AQAEH
Company with GuoLine Group Management Co. Limited M R HLCM K BMf B 2 & » Guoline
("GGMC") and GOMC Limited (“"GOMC"), subsidiaries of Group Management Co. Limited
HLCM, on 2 July 2014 for the provision of management (T GGMC J) B GOMC Limited
services by GGMC or GOMC, to the Company and/or its (TGoMCl) » GGMCHRGOMCHE=
subsidiaries, for a term of three years from 1 July 2014 to Z-—NFEtA—RABFE-ZT—+tF
30 June 2017. AEZTHAEXRAR REKMER
RMABR=FCEERE - 1L —
9 Rt
Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (0 FHBEXZzZLTHRAZ
connected transactions i A

The related party transactions in respect of (b)
management fees above constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The disclosures recognised by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in
section “Connected Transactions” of the Directors’
Report.

L) ERE2EFEALR
SRR ETRAFUAEREZ
BHEBRERS - LmHRAE14A
ERECHBERESSEHREA
[BAERZ |—EihiEft
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

29. A A EEMN M BEARR R

29. Company - Level Statement of

Financial Position

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BERSEE 392 871
Interest in subsidiaries M B A B = 1,254,488 1,254,218
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A B FIE 1,340,828 1,427,565
Available-for-sale financial assets THHEESREE 8 5
2,595,716 2,682,659

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables Hin Uk 292 226
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEH 135,289 80,142
135,581 80,368
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H IR 9,850 7,263
Amount due to a joint venture EaEERE 80 80
I 0 9930 7,343
_Netcurrentassets FrbEE 125651 73,025

Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 2,721,367 2,755,684

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHI B~ BRI 890,098 1,300,983
NET ASSETS BEE 1,831,269 1,454,701

Capital and reserves EeRfEE
Share capital (note 23) A (BaE23) 672,777 672,777
Reserves (note 24) EE(at24) 1,158,492 781,924
TOTAL EQUITY g 1,831,269 1,454,701

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 30 August 2017.

LEUNG Joseph 2%
DIRECTOR EE

RHEEER=_ZT—tENA=+HE#

ERRET -

WHANG Sun Tze &=L #¥

DIRECTOR

EFE
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

30. Immediate and Ultimate Holding

31.

Company

At 30 June 2017, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be GuoLine International Limited,
which is incorporated in Bermuda and the ultimate holding
company to be HLCM, which is incorporated in Malaysia.
These entities do not produce financial statements available
for public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and
Interpretations issued but not
yet Effective for the Annual
Accounting Year ended 30 June
2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the accounting year ended
30 June 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

30. EERBRARER AT

31.

EEERAR-E—tFER~AB=TH
H##R N 7 A Guoline International
Limited » —EARBEETIMRLZ A
Ao MEAERATABHLCM - —ER
ERADEAMRIL 2 AT o ELEER
BUBEBRERAEARER

E_E—tHEXA=T
B &5t FE T AR E
RERZHE] - KEASETAY
f%&%&ﬂ%éim%

BEAMBHRRTIBR A BBSFE
NEEEMEBE—_ZE-—tFARA=TH
SR FEERER - FELESMBER
REAZBORBIT R ER - B A
ET SR s K E AR -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

31. Possible Impact of Amendments, 31. E8Z=—ZE—tFA=+1
New Standards and AlgstEEeEMAER
Interpretations issued but not REZFE] - BIEFTH
yet Effective for the Annual HHRBREAREELENE
Accounting Year ended 30 June & 0w
2017 (continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
=R 3Rl

HBEM
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes. Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017
for unrealised losses
ERETHERNE+ KB HEH  RBREBRERELHELE —E2—+tF—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
ERETTEUELREI  HengEx  HHETE —Z2—t§—HA—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
EBVEBREENETRE  FEEFSAFIKA —E2-NF—A—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
ERVERMEENENE  £HTAH —Z-NF—HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payments: Classification and 1 January 2018
measurements of share-based payment transactions
ERVBMELENE2RER > RELZN  KESNXZZZ7EHEE —Z2-NF—A—H
HKFRS 76, Leases 1 January 2019
BEBMBMELERE TR HE —Z2-hAFE—HA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements and HKAS 28, To be determined

Investments in associates and joint ventures: Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture

BEERMBMEENETRET  FEHBFHRARBBESTENE =+ SRIEET - B EMBEEFE
ERRREETL ¥R REZHABENAREELFZHNEEHELKA
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—Z—tH X A=+HILLEE

31. Possible Impact of Amendments,

New Standards and
Interpretations issued but not
yet Effective for the Annual
Accounting Year ended 30 June
2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have certain impact on the financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
As the Group has not completed its assessment, further
impacts may be identified in due course and will be taken
into consideration when determining whether to adopt
any of these new requirements before their effective date
and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.
The Group does not intend to early adopt any of these
amendments or new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assets, calculation of impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements
of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's
financial statements are as follows:

31. BEZ=ZE—tHFARA=1

BitEstFECBMmE R
REMZHE] - RIBETHY
ZR|RBRRAREELENR

& 0w

REMB EFEZSET RMTERR
BRERSEzARSE - BAKEHR
o Fra] 2Bz 3R S50 R RE T B A 4R
RBUEARE  ZSHBTEE—
SBRT Xk o ARAEE K5
G - BREPAREBRREMTE - &
SEEREREBRNENRH BRI RAEM
ZEMBERFBUIEBE S X (fd #
AEAAHFARARN) BKEEZRZREE
g AEEEZRERNEMZZERT
S FTRIZER -

BB BHMELENEIR - [/ T
A |

ERVHBEENEIRERNASHMT
At RECRITELN  FBEEL
B3I [2MT A  HRARFE] BB
MEREEAEIRIACREESD
it ¢REEREERESNSE:
EZHBRE - B—FE BEMERE
AR MBE BT ERIE30%EE
HERERANKIEZEHIAEURE S S
BEBECHAE  YEEHEEEKR - H
REHAEENMBRR2BHEEN
T:
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

31. Possible Impact of Amendments,

31. BEZ=ZE—tHFARA=1

New Standards and
Interpretations issued but not
yet Effective for the Annual

BitEstFECBMmE R
REMZHE] - RIBETHY
ZR|RBRRAREELENR

Accounting Year ended 30 June
2017 (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss
and (3) fair value through other comprehensive
income. The classification is determined based on
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets and the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that the new classification and measurement
requirements will not have a material impact on its
accounting for financial assets.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may
result in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the
Group's trade receivables and other financial assets.
However, a more detailed analysis is required to
determine the extent of the impact.

& 0w

EBUIEMELEREIN  [£/4 T
A (&)

(a) BSRHE

(b)

BREMBHREERNFIREE=
BEZTHEERR > 25I50)
LIS R ASET & ~ (2)AAFEE
SFEREHSBFABERRGIN
NTPEEFEEHEZEHT AHM
E2EWE - BDHRRAAEE
TREEZEBEAUREHME
E2EHNRERBER -

BRAODAML  AREREHHE
TRFEBREFEHEREEZ
B REEREATE -

WL 1E

BREMBHREERFIR P ZH
EERXU [FEREERK KR
WMRABBETEAER 2B
EEBXRIENX - REFAHPEE
BAER  BABGREBRLSE
HEFEIMERL - AAK
2 RAERBEEURSER
NEARGERBEERXRS
To-ERBABEERANKAE
HEERX - HEEEATES
BAEERERE S BEFHER
HitteMEERIFEERX - A
o BEETERFMAZ DTSR
BELEEHE -
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B R R AR B

For the year ended 30 June 2017 HZE-Z—tHF A A=1+HILEE

31. Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and
Interpretations issued but not
yet Effective for the Annual
Accounting Year ended 30 June
2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts. The Group is currently assessing the
impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial statements.
Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group has
identified the following areas which may be affected:

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 2(t). Currently, revenue from sales
of goods is generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. At contract inception, an
entity evaluates whether it transfers the control
to the customer over time and therefore revenue
should be recognised over time, if not, then it
transfers control at a point in time and revenue will
be recognised at that single point in time.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that revenue from sales of goods will
continue to be recognised at a point in time.
However, as a result of the change from the risk-
and-reward approach to the transfer-of-control
approach, the point in time at which revenue will
be recognised may change upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15. Further analysis is required to determine
whether this change in accounting policy may have
a material impact on the amounts reported in any
given financial reporting period.

31. BE=F—tF<A=1

BitEstFECBMmE R
REMZHE] - RIBETHY
ZR|RBRRAREELENR

& 0w

ERNBHELENEISH  [FEF
FERKA ]

BEMBEREENEISHREVEIATS
BHWANEZEER - BBUBHREE
RIS 1S5RS ERIR AR A ER] - BIEE
B EAE 18R [WA |(BEHES
NREEBRBFAEENBRA)REES
SPERE NS [ZESE | (BRERE
BRMEENWAZER) - REER
EFFERME BN EREERE155RY
HIBHRROTE - ERADFIME - K
SEERATEZANGE BT ¢

(a) WBAEZZEE

AEBEZWAERBERNKE
2T - Bl - BHEEY
Fir 18 2 WA — BRI P B 1 JEL B B2
EFHEEBEE PR T RS -

RIBE RN B REERE 1555
BWARBEFEEBAEN ZEEER
HRB 2 EHIERER - TEH
FRIaE  ERFGEEARTHEER
BREHEERTEFRELLR
BREEZREEIRA - MRFR
= AESERERREBES
R 572 7% B8 — B BERERR IR o

ERADTSHME - REEFREHRAE
72 85 5 W a5 A% A AR 7 M B RS
R o MREREEFEES
BENEREREL  RREAT
B BHREENE15RE - AE
BREABDENNBARRZ
R ATEEE - FETE—S
DMUEEZETRREERD
RIS E M B IR S B A
EREHELEEATE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 BE—ZE—tE A B=THIEE

31. BE=Z—t&FR<A=1

31. Possible Impact of Amendments,

New Standards and
Interpretations issued but not
yet Effective for the Annual
Accounting Year ended 30 June
2017 (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

(b) Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return
the products, the Group estimates the level of
returns and makes an adjustment against revenue
and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return. However, the new requirement to
recognise separately a return asset for the products
expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the statement of financial position as the Group

5 L Bt 4 R D AR
RN FaT - BBETH
BT SR A

-

BRMBRELAE15H  [FEF
F&EEHRA IE)

(b) HFRERZHE

Brl > EREREEMRER
REBEMERE 2 KFIALH WA
KSR ERAME LT -

REE TR R B T R 5 2 RIS
SRS TEHAEEEREAE
RERMABEIHEBAREERK
RERBRZE o A - HRA
SEEMRBARRRHEEE AR
EERARE  MILFBEIES—B
NEE BHAEREHRERS

currently adjusts the carrying amounts of inventory SREMTFUBIER R —RE
for the expected returns, instead of recognising a EEBEEGESTEMRREK 2T
separate asset. | o

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(k), currently the Group classifies
leases into operating leases and enters into some leases as
the lessor and others as the lessee.

The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease.
The Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-
of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking
into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that the Group accounts for its rights and obligations under
a lease when it is the lessor under the lease.

ERNBRELEAE 165 [HE]

MU 2T - A5E B A8 E
ESEREEHE - AREFERBHEA
AVETHSE  mEMAERFARA -

EHERAHEEASEREERAE
HAMEM . REZEAMANBERE
REAXNER - MERATBMBRE
ZAE 165 AREAATHUHELEE
ZARBREHERARAREIHER
BURERREE - KEREREES
ENEAMRARRBERATBYE
HEZERNE 1658 2B R MR L AER
HORBREZER  AREEAETE
REMAND T UBEERRAT BV BIR
HRAF1REEEROREMELEN
HEEREBENEHE -

BB BRELREIGHRIFERX
FEAEESAEHEARARERE
ENEAREENARSR
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

FENBLQA

At30June 2017 RZZE—+t&FESA=1+H

The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at 30

June 2017:

Particulars of

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

RZB-—tFAA=ZTHETEWBRAARE

mF :

Effective
percentage of

Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
NEER ERTZRARE EMREEHH RERREIL TERE Mt
Group Company
F%58  A4d

Gladko Industries Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
EREXERAT URERR B REER
Global Flour Trader Limited 10,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of commodity
REAREZERAT 10,000 L &K oy derivatives
Guangzhou Lam Soon HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing and trading NT

Homecare Products Limited  i&#21,000,0007 of China of cleaning products
BNEEEZRARERAA PEARLNE EREREERES
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited 100 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of bran, provision of
BERENBERLA 10,000 deferred shares & trucks rental service and

100 EBR investment holding
10,000 B I BR85S HEHERREZR

Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills  US$5,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing and trading NT

Company Limited 5,000,000% 7T of China of flour products
THBEIEENERAF hEARLNE RREREERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing and trading N7

Company Limited 10,000,000 7T of China of flour products
THEERRARAF hEARLNE RREREERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 - Investment holding

Company Limited (ES Hong Kong RERR

AREBREE/BE

Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Trading of cleaning products

Laboratories (Hong Kong) ~ 2RZ&R B BRERES

Company Limited
HIEEREERE (FE)ERARA
Lam Soon Edible Oils Company ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 - Investment holding

Limited 127 Hong Kong REER

ABETRHE/BR

Lam Soon Food Industries HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding

(BVI) Limited

B#11,858 4157

ARERREE

REEZR

MIE(ER)BRAR | —E—LFFRH
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

TENBELQA

At30June 2017 R=Z—+tF<A=+H

Particulars of

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Effective
percentage of

Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
NEER ERTZRANE AR AEE REREEIL TERH i3
Group Company
F58  A4q
Lam Soon Food Industries Ordinary shares Bermuda/Hong Kong 100 100  Investment holding
Limited HK$83,228,315 BRE/BE RERR
Convertible preference
shares
HK$25,000,000
EEREMS3,228315%
TARELR
725,000,000 7T
Lam Soon Food Supply MOP25,000 Macau 100 - Trading of flour, edible oils
(Macau) Company Limited ~ 2F3#25,0007 B and cleaning products
HIERmALE(RR) BRAF B sRRREZERE
Lam Soon International US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
Limited (EFH REEERES RELR
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited UREBR BA REZR
HIE(EE) IXERAR
Lam Soon Products Supply 1,000,000 Hong Kong 100 - Manufacturing of edible
(Hong Kong) Company ordinary shares BB oils and trading of flour,
Limited 1,000,000 & B edible oils and agency
HIEERME(EE)ERAA products
RABLERER  RAMR
REERE
Lam Soon Realty Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Property holding and the
HIESERRAR UREBR Bt provision of warehousing
and logistic services
NESERREHARANARS
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Us$10,113,100 The People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing and trading N7
Company Limited 10,113,100% 7T of China of flour products
HEILR)RRERAR hEARLNE RREREERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing and trading N7
Company Limited 7,000,000% 7 of China of flour products
MIE(E)IDRAERAR hEARLAE BRERLERES
Lam Soon Silos Investments 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Investment holding
Limited IREBR 3 REER

HEHRREARLA
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

FENBLQA

At30June 2017 RZZE—+t&FESA=1+H

Particulars of

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Effective
percentage of

Name of company issued capital operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
RREH BRITZRANE EMREEHH REREEL TERE Mt
Group Company
258  ARH
Lam Soon Systems Limited 2 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 - Provision of information
HIEZSERA R UREBR Bk technology services
REEANZRE
Lam Soon Trademark Limited ~ US$2 Cook Islands/ 100 - Trademark holding
ES Hong Kong BEEE
MRS/ B
LS Golden Oils & Fats Limited ~ “A" ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
HK$185,000,000  EBEEREHS REER
"B" ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
"C" ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000
[AIBER
7185,000,000 T
[BIEER
7%%9,900,000 7T
[CIEBR
##5,100,000 7T
Richly Choice Development Us$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee services
(PTC) Limited E RBERREE RUEETERE
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills  US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing and trading N7
Company Limited 27,500,000% 7T of China of flour products
LORBERERARA hEARLAE BRERLERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic 100 - Provision of silo facilities N1
Company Limited 9,500,000% 7 of China RUERRE
LNREFEERAR hEARLAE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 - Manufacturing and trading N7
Oils Company, Limited 12,000,000% 7T of China of edible products
R IE AR R A = PEARLNE RAMEERES
Swamex Food Service Limited 400,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 100  Trading of edible oils products
BXRRARLT 400,000 & B &t RARERES
Note: BfEE
N1 These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign N1 ZEWBATRPEARREFELZEUIE

companies under PRC Laws.

BENTBHRAM -
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEMBEHSE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for

the last five financial years are as follows:

FEEBEHENRFENES EERAE
RADRRREEBEDZPROT

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-tf& CZE-RF CZE-7F CZE-mNF CZT-Z=F
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BERET EBMEET EYEET BYEER
Results E3+
Revenue YON 4,814 4,708 4,449 4117 3,618
Operating profit before interest, — KINBFEL L -
taxation, depreciation and s WEREH
amortisation e RN 369 324 221 232 234
Profit attributable to equity RATRREMS
shareholders of the Company byl 273 202 114 141 131
Assets and liabilities BERER
Non-current assets FREBEE 697 727 803 801 828
Net current assets FREEE 1,210 1,005 957 907 718
Non-current liabilities FREBEE (1) (1) (69) (85) -
Non-controlling interests FiEEIER (11) (11) (1n (11) (11)
Total equity attributable to equity A R R R L B HER
shareholders of the Company 1,895 1,720 1,680 1,612 1,535
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FSC

wwwfsc.org

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

FSC™ C017167

© Copyright Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited. All Rights Reserved.

The FSC™ logo identifies products which contain wood and virgin fibre from responsible sources
certified in accordance with the rules of the Forest Stewardship Council®
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